
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday 7 March 2023. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee 

 

     
 

 

Wednesday, 15 March 2023 at 2.00 pm 
Council Chamber - Council Offices,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Ian Stokes, 
Councillor Murray Turner and Councillor Sue Woolley 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, 
via the SKDC Public-I Channel 

 
 
 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2023 
 

(Pages 3 - 13) 

4.   Updates from previous meeting 
 

To consider updates on Actions agreed at the meeting held on 30 
January 2023. 
 

(Page 15) 

5.   Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

This report provides an update on progress against the internal audit plan 
and summarises the results of our work. 
 
 

(Pages 17 - 79) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://southkesteven.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


 

 
 

6.   2022/2023 Accounting Policies and publication date of the Statement 
of Accounts 
 

The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the 
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to 
date and in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code). 
 
In line with the Committee’s terms of reference it is a requirement that the 
proposed policies are reported prior to the production of the Statement of 
Accounts. 
 

(Pages 81 - 98) 

7.   Strategic Risk Register 
 

To provide an update on the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 
 

(Pages 99 - 118) 

8.   Planning Service Review - Progress Report March 2023 
 

The purpose of this report is for Governance and Audit Committee to 

consider the progress made against the Planning Review Action Plan and 

to seek agreement to receive a further progress report in 12 months in 

relation to the remaining actions.   

 

(Pages 119 - 129) 

9.   Work Programme 
 

To consider the Committee’s Work Programme. 
 

(Pages 131 - 132) 

10.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

 



 
 

Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 
Monday, 30 January 2023, 2.00 pm 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Paul Wood (Chairman) 
 
Councillor Richard Dixon-Warren 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 
Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
 

 

Cabinet Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing)   
 
Officers in attendance  
 
Richard Wyles (Chief Finance Officer and Section 151 Officer) 
Graham Watts (Monitoring Officer and Assistant Director of Governance) 
Craig Spence (Acting Director for Housing and Property) 
Julie Martin (Head of Housing Technical Services) 
Kelly Foster (Repairs Manager) 
Claire Morgan (Senior Management Accountant) 
Carol Drury (Community Engagement Officer) 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Services Officer) 
  

 

 

 
12. Apologies for absence 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Kaffy Rice-Oxley, Ian Stokes 
and Murray Turner. 
 
Councillor Mark Whittington substituted for Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley and 
Councillor Philip Knowles substituted for Councillor Murray Turner. 

 
 

13. Disclosure of interests 
 

No interests were disclosed. 
 
As a substitute on the Committee, Councillor Whittington clarified that he would not 
take part in any debate that covered his portfolio as Cabinet Member for Waste 
Services and Climate Change. 
 

14. Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2022 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2022 were proposed, seconded 
and agreed as a correct record. 

 
15. Updates from previous meeting 

 
The Chairman informed Members that the action sheet from the meeting held on 30 
November 2022 within the agenda confirmed that an amended audit annual report 
was sent by email to Members of the Committee on 1 December 2022 and had 
been published online. 

 
16. Appointment of External Auditors 

 
The Council currently utilised Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) for the 
procurement of external audit services.  On 3 March 2022 Full Council approved 
that the Council should opt into the PSAA national procurement scheme for the 
provision of external audit services for the period commencing April 2023.  On 17 
October 2022 the PSAA informed the Council that KPMG LLG would be the 
appointed external auditor for the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 subject to consultation.   
 
Confirmation had now been received that KPMG LLP had been formally appointed 
as the Council’s external auditors and was approved by the PSAA Board at its 
meeting on 16 December 2022. The audit of the 2023/23 Statement of Accounts 
was to be completed by Grant Thornton so the Governance and Audit Committee 
would continue to receive reports from the Council’s current external auditors during 
2023/24 before having moved to KPMG’s control. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed Members that details in terms of personnel and 
representation at future Governance and Audit Committees had yet to be 
confirmed.  The participation as part of a Lincolnshire Group was considered 
beneficial to the Council as it provided opportunities for a more collaborative way of 
working. 

4



 
 

 
The Chairman clarified that the appointment was for a term of five years and stated 
that KPMG were well-known nationwide. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED; 
 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee: 

 
a) Noted that KPMG LLP will be the Council’s external auditors for 

the period 2023/24 to 2027/28 following the completion of the 
Public Sector Audit Appointments procurement.  

 
17. Treasury Management Strategy Statement 2023-24 

 
The report was presented to Committee by the Chief Finance Officer. 
 
The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services (the 
“CIPFA Treasury Management Code”) and the CIPFA Prudential Code required 
local authorities to produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) on 
an annual basis.   The TMSS detailed the investment and borrowing policies that 
the Council were to follow during 2023/24.  The CIPFA code and the Department 
for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) statutory guidance also 
required the Council to have a policy on non-treasury investments which was 
included in the Capital Strategy which was to be approved by Council on 1 March 
2023.   
 
The TMSS set out the counterparties that the Council would invest with and the 
limits that would be invested with each counterparty.  CIPFA published a revised 
Treasury Management Code and a revised Prudential Code on 20 December 2021 
and stated that revisions needed to be included from the 2023/24 financial year.  
The Council was required to reflect the changes to the new Codes of Practice when 
it prepared the Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) and Annual 
Investment Strategy (AIS) reports and also related reports during the financial year. 
 
The revised Treasury Management Code required all investments and investment 
income to be attributed to one of the following purposes:  
 
•   Treasury Management – investments held for cash purposes 
•   Service Delivery – Housing new builds and local infrastructure 
•   Investment in assets and facilities to deliver a commercial return to the Council  
 
The revised Treasury Management Code required the Council to implement the 
following:  
 
•   Adopt a new liability benchmark treasury indicator to support the financing risk 

management of the capital financing requirements.  

5



 
 

•   Long-term treasury investments, (including pooled funds were to be classed as 
commercial investments unless justified by a cash flow business case 

  •   Pooled funds were to be included in the indicator for principal sums maturing in 
years beyond the initial budget year 

•    Amendment to the knowledge and skills register for officers and members 
involved in the treasury management function – to be proportionate to the size 
and complexity of the treasury management conducted by each authority 

 •  Reporting to members was to be undertaken quarterly 
 •  Environmental, social and governance (ESG) issues to be addressed within the 

Council’s treasury management policies and practices (TMP1). 
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed Members that some of the balances and 
financial levels referenced within the appendices may differ slightly when the final 
budget was set but were based on the best budget estimates at the time of 
compiling the strategy.  
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• In reference to loans to Local Authority-owned companies (LAC), the Strategy 
confirmed that business plans had to be ‘clear and robust’ and to have 
demonstrated the affordability of the investment for the LAC.  A Member 
asked under what terms the Council gave a loan of £571,000 to 
EnvironmentSK Ltd when there was no clear business plan. 

 

• As the borrowing rate of the Public Works Loan Board was linked to interest 
rates, what impact would the current, frequent interest rate rises have on the 
Council’s funding Strategy going forward? 

 
The Chief Finance Officer informed the Committee that the document was a 
framework setting out the approach for Treasury Management for 2023 and 2024.  
Within the framework was an opportunity for the Council, subject to a business plan 
having been presented and approved, to make loans to its commercial Local 
Authority-owned companies provided affordability was demonstrated.  The report 
set out the Council’s statement as to how it was to consider investments in financial 
institutions, having regard for the environmental, social and governance 
arrangements of those institutions. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer continued that the plans of the Public Works Loan Board 
in terms of investment and borrowing remained uncertain particularly in regard to 
borrowing as the rates fluctuated daily.  This depended on the amount borrowed 
and over what timescale as well as the structure of the loan.  It was very likely rates 
would change again.  The Capital programme had so far been financed from 
internal borrowing or internal reserves and this involved the use of cash balances in 
lieu of going to the financial market.  The short-term strategy was to continue that 
arrangement to avoid being exposed to the volatility of the market.  The Capital 
programme that was currently being prepared and was ready for consultation did 
not have any significant expenditure related to larger-sized projects so there was no 
short-term requirement to go to the market.  The implications of borrowing impacted 

6



 
 

the revenue part of the Council’s budget and the forecast was currently challenging, 
given the volatility around utility and pay award costs.  The Council currently had no 
plans to undertake external borrowing but this was to be kept under review. 
 
The Chairman welcomed the report and complemented the hard work of the 
Finance Team. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Committee:  

 
a) Recommended to Council that the 2023-24 Treasury Management 

Strategy Statement was approved. 
 
 

18. Short Scrutiny Improvement Review 
 

The report was presented to the Committee by Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet 
Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing. 
 
In 2021 the Council commissioned the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny to 
undertake an evaluation of its scrutiny function to check and test that scrutiny 
arrangements met the Council’s high expectations of democratic accountability and 
that decision-making and overview and scrutiny was transparent, effective and 
impactful.  
 
The Governance and Audit Committee considered an initial draft of an action plan 
in response to the recommendations of the review at its meeting on 28 September 
2022.  It was agreed at that meeting that further work needed to be undertaken on 
the action plan and that this should be informed by a Councillor workshop.  
 
The workshop was held on 30 November 2022 and was open to the public and a 
number of public attendees took the opportunity to submit their views and 
comments after the workshop in respect of the Scrutiny Review.  In re-considering 
the recommendations of the review, taking into account the comments received at 
the workshop and the written submissions from members of the public, a revised 
action plan had been developed by the Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance 
and Licensing. 
 
The Action Plan also set out progress made to date in respect of each 
recommendation since receipt of the final report by the Centre for Governance and 
Scrutiny.  The Governance and Audit Committee was invited to consider the 
content of the findings of the review, the outcomes of the workshop and the revised 
action plan. 
 
The Cabinet Member clarified that she agreed with the vast majority of 
recommendations and this had been indicated within the revised plan.  A lot of 
discussion, thought and planning had gone into the revised plan.  There were to be 

7



 
 

some changes in the way the Council worked regarding scrutiny.  In particular, 
there was to be more involvement with the Committee Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen in forward planning for meetings and early scrutiny for future 
development.  Committee Chairmen were expected to attend Cabinet meetings to 
put forward subjects for future discussion and present recommendations from their 
respective Committee.  Other changes included: 

 

• Proposed revisions to the Council’s committee structure. 

• More opportunities throughout the year for the Leader and Deputy to be held 
to account in respect of delivery against the Corporate Plan. 

• Proposed amendments to the Constitution in respect of considering the 
Council’s budget  

 
 

During discussion, Members raised the following points: 
 

• What was the timescale for completion of the action plan? 

• The review was seen as important and the detail of the work undertaken was 
acknowledged by the Chairman.  The recent workshop was found to be very 
useful. 

• A Member asked why the Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and 
Licensing did not agree with recommendation 9 – ‘considered changing the 
process for the appointment if scrutiny committee chairmen’. 

• Some Members welcomed the report, although some expressed they did not 
consider it a positive report.  Some expressed disagreement regarding 
recommendation 9 and felt the current process of appointing Chairmen and 
Vice-Chairmen required change, as per the recommendation.  Councillor 
Dixon-Warren requested that his reservations about not carrying the 
chairmanship recommendation forward be recorded. 

• It was considered by some Members that tradition or the fact that some other 
Councils adopted the same Chairmen appointment process was not sufficient 
reason to continue the same process. 

• A Member considered that the review confirmed the process for appointing 
Committee Chairmen did not work and scrutiny processes had not always 
been satisfactory.  These appointments were currently political ones made by 
the Leader of the leading group, therefore creating political bias. 

• Holding scrutiny committees the day before a meeting of Cabinet did not 
represent an honest and constructive view of scrutiny meetings.  The 
appointment of Chairmen was at the heart of the process. 

• The scrutiny process needed to be more collaborative, not confrontational.  
The need to listen to the public was acknowledged as an important factor in 
the process. 

• It was noted that Cabinet agreed with 11 of 13 recommendations within the 
report. 

• Was there any protocol for promoting early scrutiny? 

• The recommendation to have a standards committee was welcomed. 
 

8



 
 

The Cabinet Member for Corporate Governance and Licensing clarified that any 
changes proposed to the action plan report would be heard at Constitution 
Committee on 14 February before being heard at Full Council in March.  The 
Cabinet Member informed the Committee that they felt no changes were needed to 
the process of appointing scrutiny Chairmen as the current process worked well 
and there were other Councils who used the same system with success. 
 
The Chairman added that the current process worked well.  Scrutiny was the 
responsibility of Committee Members to work within the framework provided, 
holding the Cabinet to account.  The Chairman added that it was traditional that the 
Leader appointed the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Waste Services and Climate Change emphasised the 
importance of providing training for Members on scrutiny committees as it would 
enable Councillors to have the confidence and skills to undertake the role.  Scrutiny 
frequently involved the ability to assess complex documents, for example, the 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement.  The difficulties in co-ordinating 
everyone’s diaries was acknowledged. 
 
The Monitoring Officer confirmed that the appointment process for committee 
chairmanship had been included as part of the comprehensive review of the 
Constitution.  The Governance and Audit Committee had the right to change any 
aspect of the Scrutiny action plan as it wished.  Whilst it was not ideal to hold 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee meetings the day before a meeting of Cabinet, 
this only happened in exceptional circumstances when a timetable relating to a 
decision was so tight that it was the only viable way to ensure scrutiny of decisions 
took place.  The Officer clarified that the most important factor was that scrutiny 
was able to happen, even it if was the day before a decision was due to be made, 
and that it would still be possible for Cabinet to take into account any 
recommendations submitted from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Training 
for Members was fundamental and following the elections in May 2023, the Centre 
for Governance and Scrutiny would be holding training for all members of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees.   
 
A Member expressed concern in respect of the proposed reduction in Committees 
and complex functions currently under the responsibility of some committees 
potentially being considered a different meeting.  The Member added that a lower 
number of Overview and Scrutiny Committees reduced the amount of effective 
challenge and that an active, challenging opposition contributed to healthy 
governance. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Committee: 

 
a) endorsed the Scrutiny Improvement Review Action Plan.  

 

9



 
 

Councillor Sue Woolley asked that her abstention from the vote be noted due to not 
being present for the whole debate. 
 

 
19. Internal Audit Progress Report 

 
The purpose of this report was to provide details of the audit work during the period 
1 December 2022 to 20 January 2023, advise on progress of the 2022/23 plan and 
raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Governance & Audit Committee 
role.  Since the last update report presented to the Governance & Audit Committee 
in December 2022, the Auditors completed the following audits: 

 
Programme Management  
Housing Voids 
 
The Chief Finance Officer clarified that in the absence of the Assurance 
Lincolnshire Auditors, the report was to be deferred to the next meeting if Members 
were in agreement.  As Housing Management staff were present, it was considered 
appropriate that their comments on the report findings be heard. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED that the Internal Audit Progress Report 
be heard at the 15 March meeting. 
 
The Acting Director for Housing confirmed that the overall assurance finding of 
‘limited’ was disappointing and down to a number of extenuating factors, including 
staffing levels, contracts and resources experienced over the last 8/9 months.  The 
new Housing Management system, scheduled to be implemented in April 2023 was 
a positive way forward. 
 
Action 1 referred to loss of revenue around delays in turnaround times for void 
properties.  Not all Voids had been inspected within two days of vacancy.  Pre-
inspection determined some of these were found to be major works properties.  
Some properties were prioritised over others having been identified as quick 
turnaround properties under 20 days.  The Housing Management System had an 
extensive live reporting facility that enabled a more efficient and responsive 
process. 
 
Action 2 referred to the ineffective management of empty properties.  Data-led 
processes were to enhance the information recorded such as asbestos reports, to 
streamline the process. 
 
Action 3 referred to post-inspections and the insufficient use of data, expected to 
improve under the new management system.  A Voids Contract Manager was a 
new post to monitor the data reports and reduce turnaround times. 
 
Action 4 referred to accuracies within data reporting and maintaining KPIs.  Service 
planning was to commence in early February 2023 to identify benchmarking and 
best practice processes.  Better performance reporting commentary was found to 

10



 
 

be required and the Council was committed to this as part of the continuation of 
improvement. 
 
Action 5 referred to the instalment of regular monthly void meetings and review of 
housing risk registers.  A number of risks had been identified as staffing, contractor 
resources and supply chain issues.  Service planning was to monitor these risks. 

 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The current 60-day turnaround target for completion of Void properties did not 
seem challenging enough and it was considered disappointing that the target 
was not currently being met. 

• Was the Housing Management confident that with the new staff structure in 
place, the situation would improve? 

• The hard work of the staff, in difficult circumstances were acknowledged.  The 
Acting Housing Director was thanked for overseeing the completion of the lift 
repairs at Meadow Court in Bourne. 

• What effect would the new Housing Management System have on the Voids 
process? 

• How was the aim to reduce potential revenue losses to be measured? 
 

The Acting Director of Housing informed Members that internal resource issues 
impacted the last year substantially.  There was now a dedicated Voids team in 
place which provided resilience.  The target of 60 days had been met but supply 
and staffing issues contributed to the current levels.  The Housing Management 
System was to give effective timescales for each part of the process and was to 
allocate an officer to provide ownership and efficiency.  The Officer stated the 
ultimate aim was for a sub-20-day target but nationwide issues were impacting all 
local authorities.  A delay of up to 6 weeks had been experienced when awaiting 
delivery of kitchen parts, for example.   
 
Rent loss figures were to be included within the KPI reports going forward.  The 
team were currently experiencing a 4.8 out of 5 satisfaction rate from tenants and 
post re-let repairs were significantly reduced. 
 
The Head of Housing Technical Services added that although the findings were 
disappointing, staff had worked exceptionally hard to improve the service. 

 
 

20. Safeguarding Annual Report 2021-2022 
 

The Community Engagement Officer presented the report. 
 
The report provided a background to the Council’s safeguarding responsibilities; 
mandatory training and development opportunities and the uptake by officers and 
elected Members.  329 training modules had been completed during 2021/22.  This 
was 288 by Officers and 71 by Members. 
 

11



 
 

 
The report also outlined the safeguarding interventions undertaken in 2021/2022, 
including short case studies to provide a background to some of the interactions 
between residents and officers.  Also included was background to, and the outcome 
of, the Council’s submission to the Lincolnshire Assessment and Assurance 
Framework (LAAF) required by the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board under 
our collective responsibilities relating to the Care Act 2014 to safeguard vulnerable 
adults.   
 
In general, our responsibilities were to report incidents or concerns to the 
responsible authority (Lincolnshire County Council) and to work with other agencies 
to ensure the welfare of children and vulnerable adults.  The Safeguarding Annual 
Report reflected these duties and highlighted how safeguarding was a Council-wide 
responsibility. 

 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• Members should be encouraged and reminded to take the training offered as 
only 17 Members had completed it and it didn’t reflect well on them. 

• Is the training to be completed every year? 
 
The Community Engagement Officer confirmed that two training modules were s to 
be completed within the first year of a Councillor’s term in office and then one other 
module each year during the four-year term. 
 
The Monitoring Officer informed Members that training will be completed as part of 
the induction programme in May. 
 
ACTION 1: 
 
That the Monitoring Officer will ensure a reminder was circulated to all 
Members to complete any training necessary. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Governance and Audit Committee: 

 
a) reviewed the 2021/2022 Safeguarding Annual Report and noted its 

contents.  
 

  
 

21. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

The Committee considered the Work Programme for 2022 – 2023. 
 
The Chief Finance Officer informed that the report on the review of terms of 
reference was to be deferred to the next municipal year. 

12



 
 

 
The Internal Audit Progress Report was deferred to the meeting on 15 March 2023. 

 
22. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

There were no other items of business. 
 

23. Close of Meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 15:47. 
 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



Action Sheet 
To provide members with an update on actions agreed at the 30 January 2023 meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee.  

Min 
no.  

Agenda 
Item 

Action(s) Assigned to Comments/status Deadline 

20 Safeguarding 
Annual 

Report 2021 
- 2022 

That the Monitoring Officer will 
ensure reminders will be 
circulated to all Members to 
complete outstanding training 

Monitoring Officer Email sent to Members on 
17 February 2023. 
 

COMPLETE 

 

15

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

 

South Kesteven 

District Council 

15 March 2023 

For all your assurance needs  17

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Key Messages 

Assurances Given 

Progress & Delivery 

Page 1 

 
 
 

Appendices 

1 - Assurance Definitions 

2 - Internal Audit Plan 2022/23 – Progress to Date 

 
Attachments 

Internal Audit Report issued: 

Programme Management 

Housing Void Management 

 Health & Safety 

Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Lucy Pledge – Head of Internal Audit & Risk Management 

lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 

Alastair Simson – Principal Auditor 

alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 
 
 
 

This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of South Kesteven District Council. Details may 

be made available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or 

referred to in whole or in part without prior consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been 

prepared, and is not intended for any other purpose. 

 
The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be 

weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form 

part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention. 

The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan. 

Contents 

18

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:amanda.Hunt@lincolnshire.gov.uk


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Key Messages 
 

Assurances 

 
Since our last update report presented to the Governance & Audit 

Committee in December 2022, we have completed the following audits:- 

A copy of the Internal Audit Reports with the agreed action plans are 

attached to this report. 

 
Progress and Delivery 

 
All remaining audits are scheduled for completion by the end of March 

2023. Our key focus over the next month include: 

 
• Key Control Testing – Debtors, Creditors and Capital Monitoring 
    – fieldwork stage 

• Combined Assurance – fieldwork stage 

 
 

A complete schedule of planned audits is included as Appendix 2. 
 

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 1 
management action plan. The definitions for each level are shown in Appendix 1. 

Audit Audit Type Assurance Level 

Programme 

Management 

Consultancy Not Applicable 

Housing Void 
Management 

Assurance Substantial – 

control design & 

framework 

 
Limited – operation 

/ implementation of 

controls & 

framework 

 

Health & Safety Assurance Substantial 

 

 
(spit opinion) 

SUBSTANTIAL 

ASSURANCE 

 
HIGH 

ASSURANCE 

Introduction 
The purpose of this report is to: 

 
Provide details of the audit work during the period 1 December 2022 to 28 February 2023 

Advise on progress of the 2022/23 plan 

Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Governance & Audit Committee role 

 
(spit opinion) 

LIMITED 

ASSURANCE 

 
LOW 

ASSURANCE 

0 
LOW 

ASSURANCE 

 
 

1 
CONSULTANCY 

19



  Introduction & Key Messages  
 

Implementation of agreed actions 

The Council uses 4action to record and track internal audit recommendations. Follow up of 

implementation as at 31 March 2023 will be undertaken to help inform the Internal Audit 

Annual Report.  Thereafter, tracking of implementation of agreed management actions will 

be undertaken on a quarterly basis and reported within our Internal Audit progress reports. 

In addition to tracking implementation of agreed management actions during the year we 

will undertake a follow up audit to evidence that all actions have been satisfactorily 

implemented where we have issued a Limited or Low assurance opinion. 

Other relevant matters: Assurance Lincolnshire Update 

As you are aware, Lucy Pledge will be leaving Lincolnshire County Council on the 30 

March 2023. She will be retiring from a Head of Audit and Risk Management role having 

helped to build the Assurance Lincolnshire partnership into the success it is today. 

Following a successful recruitment process, we are delighted to advise that Claire 

Goodenough has been appointed as a new Head of Audit and Risk Management at the 

County Council – heading up the Assurance Lincolnshire Partnership. Claire has a good 

background of working within the public sector at a senior level and with the Institute of 

Internal Audit. She joined the team on 23 January 2023, to enable a detailed handover, 

which will incorporate meeting with our clients over the coming months. 

We hope you will all join us in welcoming Claire as she begins her Assurance 

Lincolnshire journey taking the audit service forward. 

Quality Assurance 

As part of our quality assurance process, we receive feedback from clients to help 

support continuous improvement.  Whilst we are on track to deliver the plan, reflecting 

on the first year of service we acknowledge that some areas of the audit process can be 

improved, namely: 

• Keeping in touch during the audit 

• Communicating results – better debrief and clearance of reports 

• Contemporary reporting  

Our quality assurance improvement plan will be shared and monitored as part of 

regular liaison meetings.  The Head of Internal Audit will oversee this plan.  

2 20



Appendix 1 Assurance Definitions 
 

High 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 

of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 

risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance. 

 
The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low. 

Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 

operating effectively.

Substantial Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a
 

substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 

arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 

or performance.

 
There are some improvements needed in the application of controls

to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 

adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 

activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.

Limited 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited 

level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management 

of risks, and operation of controls and/or performance. 

 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 

operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 

unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 

risks are being managed effectively. It is unlikely that the activity will 

achieve its objectives. 

Low
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 

concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 

and operation of controls and / or performance.

 
There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 

risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 

appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 

of the activity not achieving its objectives is high.

3 
21



Appendix 2 2022/23 Audit Plan to date 
 

Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 
Date 

Start Actual 

Date 

End 

Actual 
Date 

Rating 

Good 

Governance 
Phase 1 and 

Decision 
making 

To provide assurance that the 

Council has a robust Governance 
Framework in place that aligns to 

best practice (CIPFA / SOLACE 
‘Delivering good Governance in 

local government’ – issued 2016. 

Benchmarking against the 7 good 
governance principles and the 

principles and the Governance 
Risk Resilience Framework – 

issued by the Centre for 
Governance & Scrutiny – issued 

2021. 

22/06/22 22/06//22 08/09/22 Substantial 

Assurance 

Risk 

Management 

To review the effectiveness of the 

risk management arrangements 

including: 

• Leadership & 
Management 

• Strategy and Policy 

• People – Risk Culture 

• Processes 

• Risk Handling & 
Assurance 

• Outcomes & Delivery 

• Using risk maturity model 

04/07/22 04/07/22 08/08/22 Substantial 

Assurance 

Cyber 

Security 

The National Cyber Security 

Centre (NCSC) has identified 10 
steps for cyber security to help 

organisations manage  cyber 
risks. The review will cover these 

10 steps with a view to confirming 

that appropriate consideration has 
been given to these areas. 

31/08/22 31/08/22 14/11/22 Substantial 

Assurance 

Health and 

Safety 

To review the effectiveness of the 

Council’s health and safety 

arrangements including: 

• Governance & Oversight 

• Compliance 

• Processes 

• Risk Assessment and 
Assurance 

• Reporting  and monitoring 
• Measuring performance 

19/09/22 09/11/22 03/03/23 Substantial 
Assurance  

Housing 

Void 

Management 

Review of the governance and 

procedures in place to monitor, 

manage and report housing voids 

10/10/22 11/10/22 19/01/23 Substantial / 

Limited 

Assurance 

 

 

4 

22



Appendix 2 2022/23 Audit Plan to date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 

Date 

Start 

Actual 

Date 

End 

Actual 

Date 

Rating 

Programme 

Management 

Review of the programme and 

project management procedures 

in place to provide management 

with assurance that a robust and 

consistent approach is being 

followed. 

This will be an advisory review. 

05/09/22 05/09/22 14/12/22 Consultancy 

Housing 

Income 

Management 

Review of the governance and 

procedures in place to monitor, 

manage and report housing 

income. 

 To be re-assessed as 
part of developing 

2023/24 plan. 

HRA 

Building 

Programme 

Assurance over the Housing 

Revenue Account building 

programme processes and 

procedures. 

To be re-assessed as part  
of developing 2023/24 

plan. 

Key Control 

Testing 

Delivery of key control testing to 

enable Head of Internal Audit to 

form an opinion on the Council’s 

financial control environment. 

Terms of Reference which include 

scope and focus on key risks 

determined with the appropriate 

senior 

manager. 

05/12/22 30/01/23  Fieldwork 

Follow Ups To provide management with 

assurance that actions from 

previous key audits have been 

implemented and this has led to 

improved outcomes. 

01/02/23   Tracked with mgt quarterly 

– follow up low / limited 

assurance opinion / high 

priority actions. 

Combined 

Assurance 

Working with management, 

coordination of the levels of 

assurance across the Council's 

critical activities, key risks, 

projects and partnerships.   To 

produce a Combined Assurance 

report in March/April 2023. 

14/12/22 23/02/23  Fieldwork 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Unrestricted 

 

        

Audit Report 

Programme Management 

Consultancy  

December 2022 

25



 

 

Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during our internal audit work.  Our quality 
assurance processes ensure that our work is conducted in conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards and that the information contained in this report is as accurate as possible – we do not provide absolute 
assurance that material errors, fraud or loss do not exist.   
 
The Head of Audit is only responsible for the due professional care in developing the advice offered to managers on risk, 
control and governance issues.  Where managers accept our advice, they accept the accountability for the consequences 
of implementing the advice. Internal Auditors working in partnership with managers during the consultancy assignment will 
not take part in any sign off decision. 

This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of South Kesteven District Council. Details 
may be made available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not 
be used or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the 
report has not been prepared and is not intended for any other purpose.

26



 

Contents 

 

 

Unrestricted 

 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire: 

 

Lucy Pledge CMIIA, QIAL 

Head of Internal Audit 
lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk  

 

Emma Bee 

Audit Manager 

emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Alastair Simson  

Principal Auditor 

alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Jodie Bromell 

Principal Auditor (SWAP) 

jodie.bromell@swapaudit.co.uk  

 

Background 

Scope & Coverage 

Executive Summary 

Page 

1 

2 

3 

Suggested Areas for Improvement  
 
 
 

5 
 
 

  

 
 
 

 

Distribution 

• Chief Executive 

• Deputy Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) 

• Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance  

• Governance and Audit Committee 

 

27

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:emma.bee@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:jodie.bromell@swapaudit.co.uk


 

Executive Summary  

 

 

Unrestricted 

The Programmes Team is led by the Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance 

who has a breadth of knowledge in programme and project management, working in this 

profession for 14 years.  Within the team are four Project Officers working on corporate 

projects which provides adequate resources to deliver them. A Policy Officer has recently 

been recruited at the beginning of October 2022 and there is an unfilled post for a 

Performance Lead due to an internal secondment.   

A new Project Framework and Toolkit was introduced in August 2022 and should now be 

followed for all corporate projects. Due to the recent implementation, it was noted that no 

projects have yet been through the framework from inception to completion. Adherence to 

the framework is monitored by the Programmes Team.  Whilst non-corporate projects can 

use and adopt the Project Framework and Toolkit, adherence to this is not monitored. 

There are a variety of corporate projects on the Corporate Projects Register, including 

projects in partnership with third parties, service transformational projects, compliance 

projects and capital projects. These range in complexity, value, and duration.  

  

28



 

Executive Summary  

 

 

Unrestricted 

 

This was a consultancy review to assess the governance of programme management 

within the Council, to ensure that they deliver the required outcomes. We achieved the 

objective of this audit by assessing the effectiveness of the following controls: 

• The Council has an approved Programme Management Framework which is used 
for all projects. 

• There is a Project Initiation Document (PID) template utilised which has been signed 
off at an appropriate level within the Council. 

• A Project Plan or timeline template has been created with SMART targets and 
milestones set. 

• An initial Risk Assessment is undertaken, and a Risk Register/Issues Log is created 
and monitored for all projects. 

• Regular monitoring and reporting of a project's progress is undertaken by relevant 
parties against the milestones/targets and budget set out in the project plan. This 
feeds into the Programme Management monitoring to determine any capacity 
restraints.  

• Project outcomes and learning are captured and utilised to improve project 
methodology. 

• The Programmes Team are adequately resourced and trained to meet the needs of 

the Council. 

We met with the Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance to undertake this 

review.  Supporting project documentation was reviewed and procedures examined to 

determine the effectiveness of the arrangements.  

29



 

Executive Summary  

 

 

Unrestricted 

The new project management framework and toolkit was implemented to help enhance 

project controls and ensure a clear project methodology is consistently followed.  The Head 

of Service is now proactively working to embed this across the Council’s projects.  Whilst no 

projects have been through the framework in their entirety, all corporate projects are now 

being reviewed to align with the framework.  

 

The new project management framework and toolkit has been developed using best practice 

and recognised project management standards to best support the Council to deliver its 

ambitious plans and wide-ranging portfolio of projects.  The framework helps to aid 

governance over projects and consistency in approach.  

 

Our review identified areas which require improvement and we have made recommendations 

to support the Council in strengthening the controls and processes to ensure projects deliver 

the desired outcomes within the appropriate risk tolerance, budget, and deadlines.   

 

Risk 1: Poor programme management may lead to the failure to deliver project 

objectives within the required timescales resulting in potential financial loss and 

reputational damage. 

We reviewed a sample of five projects to determine how well projects are being managed 

and monitored, and what project documentation was in place, using the new framework and 

toolkit as a compliance standard.   We noted that gaps against the new framework but 

acknowledge these projects commenced before it went live in August 2022.  

 

The Council should now actively promote and monitor compliance with the new framework 

to ensure it is embedded into new projects going forward.  The Council should also consider 

whether all existing corporate projects should be aligned to the new framework.  

 

There is a risk that projects are not well governed or delivered effectively if a defined and 

agreed methodology is not followed. For example: 

• Without clear project briefs, projects may not meet expected objectives. 

• Issues may not be resolved if they aren’t recorded throughout the project in a risks. 

assumptions, issues, and dependencies (RAID) log. 

• Absence of a robust project plan may mean project tasks take longer than expected if 

deliverables, timings, and resource are not clearly mapped out.  

• Project spend may go over budget if finances aren’t robustly monitored.  

 

 

30



 

Suggested Areas for Improvement  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

1 
Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Poor programme management may lead to the failure to deliver project 
objectives within the required timescales resulting in potential financial loss 
and reputational damage  

AMBER GREEN 

Findings 

We selected a sample of five projects to review, split across a range of project types listed on the Corporate Projects Register, 
noting that one of these was externally funded for fixed term of two years (with two posts joining the Corporate Projects Team in 
April 2022). One was a project not commencing until next year and another that had been ongoing for over two years regarding the 
Housing Revenue Account.  Using the Council’s new Project Management Framework and Toolkit we ascertained what project 
documentation had been produced and noted the following issues:  
 

• For 2 out of 5 projects, there was no ongoing RAID log. 

• For 1 out of 5 projects, it could not be evidenced that the business case was approved. 

• For 2 out of 5 projects, there were plans in place for individual schemes but there was not an overall plan to pull the whole project 
together. 

• For 2 out of 5 projects, the update reports could be strengthened so it is clear where the project was tracking against the original 
deadlines, and details of the project spend against budget could be added. 

• For 1 out of 5 projects, it could not be evidenced that the lessons learned had been signed off. The other 4 projects were still live 
at the time of audit testing and therefore not at the stage for needing a lessons learned review.  

 
 

Implications 

There is a risk that projects are not well governed or delivered effectively if a defined and agreed methodology is not followed.  This 
applies to existing and new projects.  

 

31



 

Suggested Areas for Improvement  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

  

Recommendations Priority level 

1.1 The Council should review existing live projects and ensure they align to the new framework. 

1.2 The Council should ensure there is adequate governance in place to embed the new framework. 

1.3 The Council should activity promote and monitor compliance with the new framework.  
Medium 

Agreed Actions Responsibility Implementation dates 

1. To review live projects against toolkit (which includes the governance 
guidelines) and align documentation accordingly. 
 

2. To actively promote compliance across the Council. 

Head of Corporate 
Projects, Policy and 
Performance 

31st March 2023  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

32



 

Suggested Areas for Improvement  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

2 
Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Poor programme management may lead to the failure to deliver project 
objectives within the required timescales resulting in potential financial loss 
and reputational damage  

AMBER GREEN 

Findings 

We also noted that the new Project Management Framework did not state that projects should be subject to an initial risk 
assessment based on the Council’s Risk Management Framework prior to the commencement of the project.  None of the five 
projects reviewed underwent an initial risk assessment.  
 
The initial risk assessment is a key part of good governance on decision making and should be included in the framework and 
applied to new projects.  
 

Implications 

Risk assessment and risk monitoring of key corporate projects is a fundamental part of project management. There is a risk that 
decisions and projects are entered into without sufficient consideration of risk and outside of corporate policy and approach.   

Recommendations Priority level 

2.1   The new framework should be enhanced so projects are risk assessed against the Council’s Risk 
Management Framework prior to commencement.  Medium 

Agreed Actions Responsibility Implementation dates 

The Head of Corporate Projects, Policy and Performance will determine how 
projects can be assessed and included in the Risk Management Framework. 

Head of Corporate 
Projects, Policy and 
Performance 

31st March 2023 

33



 

Suggested Areas for Improvement  

 

5 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

3 
Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Poor programme management may lead to the failure to deliver project 
objectives within the required timescales resulting in potential financial loss 
and reputational damage  

AMBER GREEN 

Findings 

Non-corporate projects are not currently included in the roll out of the framework which support best practice and effective project 
management and delivery.  
 

Implications 

There is the risk of a two-tier system for project management and that non-corporate projects fail to deliver and do not comply with 
best practice and the Councils new Project Management Framework.  

Recommendations Priority level 

3.1 The Council ensures all relevant projects are managed and delivered under an effective framework, 
which supports and enhances timely, managed delivery.    Medium 

Agreed Actions Responsibility Implementation dates 

We will identify all relevant posts and service areas undertaking project work and 
determine the best approach to provide training/guidance/ongoing support. 

Head of Corporate 
Projects, Policy and 
Performance 

31st March 2023 

 

34



    

 

 

 
 

 Draft Internal Audit Report 

Housing Void Management 

             Date:  19 January 2023 

 

 

 

35



 

 

 

 

36



              Contents 

 

 
 

The contacts at Assurance Lincolnshire with this review are: 

Lucy Pledge 

Head of Internal Audit 

lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Alastair Simson 

Principal Auditor 

alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Clare Pollard 

Senior Auditor  

Clare.Pollard@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Samuel Baitup 

Senior Auditor  

Samuel.Baitup@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Background and Scope                                                                                              

Page 
1 

  
Executive Summary  

Assurance Opinion and Key Messages                                                                                            
 

4 
 

Management Response                                                                                              10 
  
Action Plan   

Findings, Recommendations and Agreed Actions 11 
  
Advisory Points – Adding Value through Efficiencies   

Findings and advice 16 
  
Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 17 
Appendix 2 – Distribution List 18 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 

37

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:alastair.simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Clare.Pollard@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Samuel.Baitup@lincolnshire.gov.uk


  Background and Scope 

P a g e | 1 
 

Background and Context 

South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) has nearly 6,000 properties for social housing needs, creating a large revenue for the 

Council, and providing affordable accommodation for multiple tenants who otherwise may struggle to find lodging within their 

budget. 

Around 5% of these properties become vacant every year and to ensure these houses are clean, safe, secure and meet the 

minimum standard set by the regulator of Social Housing and described within South Kesteven Void Quality Standard.  For these 

standards to be met, maintenance of varying degrees is required on the property making it uninhabitable or void during this period 

and therefore not generating any rent/income.  If appropriate, tenants are recharged a contribution of the costs of repairs and 

maintenance.    

A new Void Policy and Re-lets Standard was approved in January 2022.  It aims to provide a greater level of consistency and focus 

on void management – with the objective of: 

‘Delivering a clean, safe and secure property to incoming tenants, within our targets for turnaround times, standard and cost’. 

The Council’s Corporate Plan Priority 5 – ‘Undertake a housing review to provide the highest quality service possible to our tenants’ 

includes a new key performance indicator on average void times - < 60 days. This figure is a stretch target for the service with the 

aim of a 20% reduction in void days annually to eventually meet it.  

Performance is monitored quarterly through the Corporate Leadership Team and reported every six months to Rural and 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  Current performance is set out below: 

 2020/21 2021/22 
 

2022/23 – Q3  

Average Void times 

(calendar days)  

Major works: 162.48 

Minor works: 64.06 

83.46 days 

 

     96.72 days  

Void Rent Loss £174k £344k £213k  
Number of properties re-let 377 327 184 

 

 

38



  Background and Scope 

P a g e | 2 
 

The figures show an increase in the average void days lost and is still outside of the targeted <60 void days. 

The Council updated its Rechargeable Repairs Policy in October 2022, encouraging tenants to take responsibility for the 

maintenance and cleanliness of their homes in accordance with their responsibilities in their Tenancy Agreement.  It sets out 

tenants liability for the repair of items which have been caused by wilful damage or by carelessness/negligence by their family or 

visitors to the home. 

The Council has been on a significant improvement programme for its Housing Service – areas most relevant to this audit include: 

• Improved management structure – providing a new direction and transforming the service.  

• New structure for the Housing Repair Services – which includes a new post of Voids Contract Manager.  It aims to improve 

service delivery efficiency and effectiveness. 

• Better cross team working. 

• Improved processes and reporting.  

 

Scope 

The purpose of this audit is to provide assurance on the effective management of void housing. This will encompass reviewing the 

processes in place, testing a sample of cases and evaluating the monitoring systems used to report performance. We will also 

follow up on the previous audit recommendations.  

We tested 18 void properties with void end dates from June 2021 to September 2022. This number was made up of eight minor, 

four moderates and six major work categories.  We targeted a range of properties that had high void days compared to their 

grouping (minor, moderate or major) to ascertain the reasons for delays and identify areas of improvements. 

39



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 3 
 

Substantial Assurance for control design and framework 

 

Substantial Assurance 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 
substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the application of 
controls to manage risks. However, the controls have been 
evaluated as adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently 
so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.   

 

 
 

Limited Assurance for operation / implementation of controls and framework  

 
 

 

Limited Assurance 

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 
limited level of confidence on service delivery arrangements, 
management of risks, and operation of controls and / or 
performance. 
 
The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to 
be operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls 
evaluated are unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence 
(assurance) that the risks are being managed effectively.  It is 
unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives. 

Direction of Travel 
 
 
 
 

Improving  

 

 

40



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 4 
 

Risk 
Rating 

(R-A-G) 
Recommendations 

  High Medium 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty for extended periods and/or being 
below regulation standard for new tenants. 

Medium 1 4 

Processes are ineffective including budget monitoring and re-charge system. Low 0 0 

Skills and capacity to undertake the process are not in place Medium 0 0 

There is no reporting or management oversight of void housing Low 0 0 

Ineffective communication across the team Low 0 0 

Follow up previous audit by RSM Low 0 0 

TOTAL  1 4 
 

  

41



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 5 
 

Key Messages 

 

Turnaround times and rent loss remains a challenging area for the Council.  The new policies and 

processes implemented to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the Council’s management 

of void properties will take time to deliver expected results.  Whilst the direction of travel is 

improving - performance is still below the target of < 60 days at 96.72 days at Q3 2022/23 with an 

associated loss of income decreasing to £213k. 

The following management actions are already in progress: 

 Implementation of new Integrated Housing Management System which shall have full 
workflow and void process integration. This shall also enable effective recharges to outgoing 
tenants 

 Housing team restructure with an enhanced focus on voids 

 Contracts for Asbestos analytics, sampling and removal works have been procured 

 Implementation of Nat Fed 7 SOR’s to enable effective benchmarking of future costs 

 Implementation of Choice Based Lettings in quarter 2 2023 

 

Our review identified the following improvement areas: 

• Monitoring inspections timescales - 39% of voids were not inspected within 48 hours 
increasing the potential loss of rents due to the property being unoccupied.  We 
acknowledge that the reason for the delay has been recorded but recommend that 
management consider obtaining exception reports on inspection dates exceeding 48 hours 
and consider these as part of the weekly void meetings helping identify root causes and 
improvements. 

 

42



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 6 
 

The service has been impacted by staff shortages in the inspector team which has delayed 

inspections of properties. To relieve staff pressures agency staff were hired to fill the gaps. 

This proved unsuccessful as they left shortly after being trained. The service has 

implemented a plan to also outsource inspections to an external contractor. This is in the 

preliminary stages but if successful will further alleviate pressures on the current in-house 

inspector team.  

The use of Agency staff has resulted in inconsistent application of the new void standard 
resulting in additional works on some properties with an effective increase in costs. This has 
been mitigated by temporary internal staff reshuffles and the clear instruction to contractors 
to cost and seek approval from the manager before carrying out any works not specified. 

  

• Improving data quality within the housing system. We confirmed that an asbestos 
survey was initiated the same day as the inspection in 39% of the samples checked, with 
45% already having survey data and therefore not requiring a survey. Two properties who 
had survey data and did not require an asbestos survey did not show these tasks as 
completed on the void management database. The properties were correctly managed in 
line with the asbestos procedures, but the data was not recorded on to the system. One 
property was delayed by three months due to the asbestos surveying and analytical 
company being out of contract, together with a backlog of work for SKDC. The intermediate 
solution implemented was to bring in an alternative contractor to meet their required KPI’s. 
The service now has a permanent contract in place. 

 

• Performance reporting. We identified some inconsistencies in reporting information on 
Housing Void updates and the Corporate Plan performance framework.  We have 
recommended a review of performance information and benchmarking with other high 
quartile performing council’s.   

43



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 7 
 

 
 

• Reviewing the risk register - During our review we found two incomplete entries, risks are 
not clearly defined and some of the mitigations were not SMART.  Therefore, we have 
recommended a review of the risk register be undertaken.  We understand that service risks 
will be transferred to the 4risk system shortly and service plans are being developed.  This 
is a good time to revisit the risks and issues facing the Housing Repairs Service and 
achievement of the Voids policy. 
 
The service deems that skills and capacity to undertake the process are not in place as a 
medium risk. Even though the service has experienced staff shortages and lack of 
contractor capacity our review noted that the service has put in place satisfactory controls to 
effectively manage the situation. Therefore, we have no recommendations on this risk. 

 
The future of the Service will see the implementation of new systems. For example, 

• The introduction of National Federation Schedule of Rates. This will align the Council with 
contractor working rates removing the need for the contractor to convert them and therefore 
reducing costs. 
 

• The implementation of the housing management system scheduled for release in April 
2023.  This will provide improvement to efficiency through workload reduction and the 
incorporation of workflows. 

 

• A new staff restructure is being proposed which will see the creation of a new Voids 
Contract Manager post. The new member of staff will co-ordinate contractors freeing up 
capacity within the team. 

44



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 8 
 

 
Further detail on our findings can be found in the attached action plan on the following pages.   
 
We have also included some advisory points which management may consider implementing to 
improve efficiency in their systems. 
 
We would like to thank all staff for their help during this review. 

  

45



  Executive Summary 

 

P a g e | 9 
 

Areas of Good 
Practice 
 

 
 
 
 

Through discussion we identified the following areas of good practice: 

 A new Void Policy and Re-lets Standard was approved in January 2022. 

 The Council updated its Rechargeable Repairs Policy in October 2022. 

 Procedure notes updated to reflect current practice. 

 Improved oversight on contractor activity and costings, balancing getting it right first time and 
keeping work within budget. 

 100% of post inspections were carried out on the same day works were completed. 

 Properties were promptly (within 24hrs) placed into the housing pool post inspection. 

 Weekly void monitoring and action tracker 

 Priority planning of works for quick turnaround times – quick wins. 
 

Managing your 
risks 
 

 

Good risk management, including maintaining risk registers, helps you to identify, understand and 
reduce the chance of risks having a negative impact on achievement of your objectives. 
 
During our review we didn’t identify any additional risks to be included on your risk register.  We have 
suggested that the risk register is reviewed, ensuring mitigating actions are SMART and considered in 
how they reduce the likelihood or impact of the potential risk. 
 
 

46



   Management Response 

 

P a g e | 10 
 

Management 
Response 

 
 

The audit has identified that the revised process and Void Policy and Re-let standard provide us with 

the foundations to deliver continuous improvement to this important aspect of Housing. 

The ‘Limited Assurance’ outcome is disappointing but understandable and is a reflection of the 

impact that several factors outside our direct control have had on our wider performance. 

The recent restructure shall remedy the staff levels with direct control of voids to a level that will 

enable positive performance and focus on the voids aside from our other repairs and maintenance 

commitments. 

The audit has highlighted the importance of our upcoming IHMS implementation and the enhanced 

reporting this shall provide us with. The data shall be transparent and of a higher quality enabling us 

to both manage in house resource more effectively alongside our contractor performance and work 

standards. 

The current KPI’s shall be revised as a part of the ongoing service planning and shall be integral to 

the new Corporate Plan. 

Completion and timely delivery of the agreed actions shall enable us to embed the positive 

foundations that we have created. 

 

 

 

 

47



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 11 
 

1.  

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty 
for extended periods and/or being below regulation standard for new 
tenants. 

Medium Low 

Findings 

We found that 11 of the 18 (61%) property samples tested were inspected by the voids team within 48 hours of receiving the keys. 
The 7 (39%) properties that were outside of this timeframe was delayed due to staff shortages, Covid restrictions, the Council 
awaiting legal notices and chemical cleaning required. The effect of delayed inspections results in a loss of revenue for properties 
that require minor work; an example of this was a property that had a delay of 13 days for the inspection which is 76% of the total 
17 void days. 

Implications 

Loss of revenue due to the property being unoccupied for longer than necessary. 

Recommendation 

Management to obtain exception reports on inspection dates exceeding 48 hours and consider these 
as part of the weekly void meetings helping identify root causes and improvements.  

High 

Agreed Action Responsibility Implementation date 

1.1  Utilise the new reporting capability of IHMS to monitor each void stage 
and identify opportunities to improve and champion good performance.  

 

Repairs Manager and 

Voids and Responsive 

repairs surveyor. 

 

May 2023 

48



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 12 
 

2.  

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty 
for extended periods and/or being below regulation standard for new 
tenants. 

Medium Low 

Findings 

We confirmed that an asbestos survey was initiated the same day as the inspection in 39% of the samples checked, with 45% already having 

survey data and therefore not requiring a survey. Two properties who had survey data and did not require an asbestos survey did not show 
these tasks as completed on the void management database. The properties were correctly managed in line with the asbestos procedures, 

but the data was not recorded on to the system.  

Implications 

Poor data integrity can lead to misinformed decisions and mistrust in the system. 

Recommendation 

2.1  Review data quality of  the Housing System reminding staff of the importance of complete and accurate  

data being input into the system.  Good data ensures good management information provided. 

2.2  Consider reviewing the mandatory fields within the housing system eg should asbestos survey be a   

mandatory field.  Alternatively, explore if management exception reports can be obtained from the system. 

 

Medium  

Agreed Action Responsibility Implementation date 

Weekly exception reports to identify any data inaccuracies to be introduced until the 

implementation of the new IHMS system in May 2023. 

Repairs Manager and 
Voids and Responsive 

repairs surveyor 

February 2023 

49



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 13 
 

3.  

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty 
for extended periods and/or being below regulation standard for new 
tenants. 

Medium Low 

Findings 

Properties that have received maintenance work are re-inspected by the Void team to assess and ensure that the required void quality 

standard is met. On occasion properties are found to be sub-standard and require rework. This work is captured within the Void pack up but 
not recorded or used in an effective manner that could assist the service in future improvements.    

Implications 

The service is missing out on analytical data that could be used for improvements in the future. 

Recommendation 

Record post inspection data, where contractors have not completed work, allowing for appropriate contract 

management to be carried out. Medium 

Agreed Action Responsibility Implementation date 

3.1  Utilise the post inspection outcome report from new IHMS post launch to 
understand the level of additional work required post inspection. 
 

Repairs Manager and 
Voids and Responsive 
repairs surveyor. 

May 2023 

3.2  Ensure this report is monitored by the Voids Contract manager to inform contract 
meetings and drive performance improvement. 
 

Repairs Manager and 
Voids and Responsive 
repairs surveyor. 

May 2023 

50



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 14 
 

4.  

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty 
for extended periods and/or being below regulation standard for new 
tenants. 

Medium Low 

Findings 

The Council has identified void management as one of its corporate priorities recognising that significant improvement and transformation was 

needed.  The relevant corporate ambition is ‘Housing that meets the needs of all residents’ with an associated Priority 5 – Housing Review to 
provide the highest quality service possible to our tenants’.  An average void turnaround performance of <60 days was set in 2021/22 as a 

key performance measure.   

Information was also provided on the income loss and number of homes re-let during 2021/22.   

Examination of the data showed: 

• Information presented to the Rural and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 8th December 2022 showed 
performance is currently 81 days turnaround time as at Q2 2022/23.  Although the performance measure was showing red – no 

commentary or improvement action was stated. 

• The new key performance measure amalgamates all types of works – minor / major.  Some major repairs may distort performance 

data and is not comparable with previous years.   

• No financial data is provided – one of the key drivers of the voids policy is to minimise potential revenue losses. 

• Whilst other councils may have different performance measures in place benchmarking with high performing Councils will help 

compare performance.   

Implications 

 Data integrity and consistency in reporting is vital to ensure informed decision making and appropriate action is taken.  

Recommendation 

51



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 15 
 

4.1  Review  current performance measures and data integrity, ensuring that the Council is measuring the right 

things to help oversight and monitoring of successful achievement of its Corporate Plan and its void policy.  

We suggest number of voids and £ should be included.  

4.2 That the Council benchmark its void performance with other Councils – perhaps visiting high performing 
Councils (with a turnaround of <60) to learn from best practice.  This should form part of the Voids 

performance update.   

4.3 Commentary on the Corporate Performance update should be action focussed where improvement 

required ie Red / Amber rating. 

 

Medium 

Agreed Action Responsibility Implementation date 

 
4.1  KPI review as a part of the Corporate Plan refresh 

 

Acting Director of 
Housing 

June 2023 

4.2  Utilise Housemark benchmarking figures to understand performance and 
provide context to performance reports 

 

Acting Director of 
Housing 

April 2023 

4.3  This shall be delivered in future performance reporting commentary 
 

Acting Director of 
Housing 

April 2023 

52



  Action Plan 
  

P a g e | 16 
 

5.  

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Ineffective management of void housing, leaving properties empty 
for extended periods and/or being below regulation standard for new 
tenants. 

Medium Low 

Findings 

The risk register is currently reviewed at the monthly meetings. Examination of the risk register showed: 

• Two incomplete entries 

• Risks that are not clearly defined 

• Mitigations that are not SMART and do not affect the likelihood or impact of the risk eg Risk No.1 mitigation of "Regular meetings to 

understand pressure" would not reduce the impact or likelihood of contractor capacity.  

We understand that service risks will be transferred to the 4risk system shortly and service plans are being developed.  This is a good time to 

revisit the risks and issues facing the Housing Repairs Service and achievement of the Voids policy.  

Implications 

 The Risk Register is an important tool to help prepare for events that effect output and prevent escalation of the issue. If these are not 

completed with due diligence, then output can be severely impacted causing irreparable damage. 

Recommendation 

Review the Risk Register ensuring risk mitigations actions are SMART.  Medium 

Agreed Action Responsibility Implementation date 

5.1  Undertake Risk Register refresh as a part of service planning 
 

Head of Technical 
Services 

April 2023 

  

53



  Advisory Points - Adding Value through Efficiencies 

 

P a g e | 17 
 

The following items are advisory recommendations / comments arising from the audit, which management may wish to consider 

implementing to improve efficiency of the system or performance. 

Ref Finding Advice 

AP 01 The monthly budget meetings held between the Repairs 
manager, Head of Housing Technical Services and 
Accounts incorporates discussions around budget control 
and produces actions to be completed. These taskings 
are captured on the spreadsheet used for the meetings 
but does not have a target completion date or persons 
responsible allocated. 

We recommend producing an action tracker incorporating 
tasks, target dates and responsible person. This will 
provide greater clarity for task management. 

AP 02 The service has produced a flowchart illustrating the 
pathways that Void management should follow. One of 
the gateways is for a post inspection check to be carried 
out and an assumption that it will pass first time. This is 
not always the case and the property is re-assigned to the 
responsible contractor for the work to be completed. 

 

Input a pathway into the process for Post Inspection 
failures. This will ensure that the process has a route to 
follow. 

AP 03 Currently the service uses a word document for capturing 
void activity at the weekly meeting. Placing this data into a 
spreadsheet will allow for historical data to be kept, 
targeted dates can be RAG rated, person/team allocation 
incorporated and a front sheet for statistic presentation.  

Create an excel spreadsheet to track properties, issues 
and actions allocated to staff.  

  

54



           Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions 

 

P a g e | 18 
 

High Substantial 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a high level of 

confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and the operation of controls and / or 

performance. 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity gives us a substantial 

level of confidence (assurance) on 
service delivery arrangements, 
management of risks, and operation 

of controls and / or performance. 

 

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 
operating effectively. 

 

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 
adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of 

the activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.   
 

Limited Low 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a limited level of 

confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or 

performance. 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity identified significant 

concerns on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or 

performance. 

 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 

operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 
achieve its objectives. 

 

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 

risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 
appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore, the risk 
of the activity not achieving its objectives is high. 
 

 

55



           Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions 

 

P a g e | 19 
 

 

Risk Ratings 

Current Reflects the residual risk after assessing the controls in place. 

Target 

Represents what level risk an organisation may wish to take, or what level of risk is considered acceptable.  Where risk 

ratings are not at target levels, then recommendations will be given within the report to help achieve the expected risk 

rating. 

In some areas the target risk rating may not be “Low”, and we may be willing to accept a “Medium” target risk rating.  

These situations could be found where: 

• An organisation wishes to realise potential opportunities and as a result has a higher risk appetite. 

• The area under review is so inherently risky that we accept that risk mitigation strategies are unable to achieve a “Low” 
target risk rating.   

Action Priority 

High  
Immediate management attention is required - an internal control or risk issue where there is a high certainty of:  
substantial loss / non-compliance with corporate strategies, policies, or values / serious reputational damage / adverse 
regulatory impact and / or material fines (action taken usually within 3 months). 

Medium 
Timely management action is warranted - an internal control or risk issue that could lead to financial loss / reputational 
damage / adverse regulatory impact, public sanction and / or immaterial fines (action taken usually within 6 to 12 months) 

56



           Appendix 2 – Distribution List 

 

P a g e | 20 
 

Distribution List   

 

 

Andrew Cotton – Director of Housing 

Craig Spence – Assistant Director of Housing 

Julie Martin – Head of Housing Technical Services 

Kelly Foster – Repairs Manager Housing Technical Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to 

our attention during our internal audit work.  Our quality 

assurance processes ensure that our work is conducted in 

conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards and that the information contained in this report is 

as accurate as possible – we do not provide absolute 

assurance that material errors, fraud or loss do not exist.   

This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members 

and Management of South Kesteven District Council  Details 

may be made available to specified external organisations, 

including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not 

be used or referred to in whole or in part without prior consent.  

No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report 

has not been prepared, and is not intended for any other 

purpose. 

 

57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Unrestricted  

Health and Safety  

Internal Audit Report 

 

 

 

Date: 03 March 2023 

59



 

 

Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

 

60



              Contents 

 

 
 

Unrestricted 

 

Distribution List 

Phil Swinton – Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and 

Business Continuity Lead 

Phil.Swinton@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Craig Spence - Acting Director of Housing 

Craig.Spence@southkesteven.gov.uk 
 

Tracey Elliott – Governance & Risk Officer 

Tracey.Elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Contacts  

Lucy Pledge - Head of Internal Audit and Risk Management 

Lucy.Pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Alastair Simson - Principal Auditor 

Alastair.Simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk 

 

Dan Newens - Assistant Director – Client Delivery (SWAP) 

Daniel.Newens@swapaudit.co.uk   

 

Jodie Bromell - Principal Auditor (SWAP) 

Jodie.Bromell@swapaudit.co.uk   
 

 

 

 
Background and Scope                                                                                              

Page 
1 

  
Executive Summary  

Assurance Opinion and Key Messages                                                                                            
 

2 
 

                                                                         
Managing your Risks                  
 
Management Response     

 
5 
 

6 
  
Action Plan 7 
  
Advisory Points       14 
  
Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 15 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

61

mailto:Phil.Swinton@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Tracey.Elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk
mailto:Lucy.Pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Alastair.Simson@lincolnshire.gov.uk
mailto:Daniel.Newens@swapaudit.co.uk
mailto:Jodie.Bromell@swapaudit.co.uk


 Background and Scope 

 

1 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Background and Context 

Health and Safety within the Council is regulated by the Health 

and Safety Executive (HSE), which is a non-departmental public 

body in the United Kingdom responsible for the encouragement, 

regulation and enforcement of workplace health, safety and 

welfare and for research into occupational risks in England, 

Wales and Scotland.  

South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) has a health and safety 

advisory function responsible for providing health and safety 

guidance, drafting policies and procedures, carrying out generic 

risk assessments and health and safety audits.  The 

management of health and safety itself and on-going specific 

risk assessments sits within the services areas and is managed 

by the heads of service or equivalent.  

 

 

 

 

 

Scope 

The review sought to provide independent assurance that the 

Council’s governance of health and safety is effectively 

managed to ensure that it delivers the required outcomes. We 

assessed the effectiveness of the following controls: 

• Policies and procedures; 

• Risk identification and assessment; 

• Governance structures; 

• Audit framework; 

• Monitoring and measuring performance against defined 

KPIs; and 

• Incidents and near misses reporting and investigation. 

We met with the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and 

Business Continuity Lead and a sample of Head of Service to 

obtain an understanding of each of the above areas. Supporting 

documentation/reports were reviewed and procedures 

examined to determine the effectiveness of the arrangements. 

 

62



  Executive Summary 

2 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on the activity 
gives us a substantial level of confidence 
(assurance) on service delivery arrangements, 
management of risks, and operation of controls 
and / or performance. 
 
There are some improvements needed in the 
application of controls to manage risks. However, 
the controls have been evaluated as adequate, 
appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the 
risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low. 
 

 
 
 

Risk 
Current 
Rating 
(R-A-G) 

Recommendations 

High Medium 

 Reputational damage and potential for financial loss where 
the authority's Health and Safety Policy and procedures do 
not comply with applicable legislation; are not comprehensive; 
are not available to all interested parties. 

Green - - 

 Risk identification, assessment, action planning, reporting, 
inspections and recording of Health and Safety risks are not 
conducted in-line with policy and procedural guidance, 
leading to reputational damage and the potential of financial 
loss for the authority. 

Medium - 1 

 The Council has inappropriate governance structures in place 
to manage Health & Safety, including insufficient capacity and 
capability levels and no defined measures and targets in 
place. 

Medium - 2 

 There is inadequate monitoring activity applied to oversee 
and direct Health and Safety activities, leading to reputational 
damage for the authority. 

Medium - 1 

 
Totals  0 4 

63



  Executive Summary 

3 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Key Messages 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overall, the health and safety controls are robust and are operating effectively and efficiently. From the work 
undertaken, the following good practices were observed and these have contributed to the Substantial audit 
opinion provided: 

• A comprehensive suite of health and safety policies are in place, which clearly define health and safety 
roles and responsibilities across the Council.  

• Risk assessments are completed by service areas in line with legislation. We reviewed a sample of 
generic risk assessments, and service specific risk assessments, from Street Scene, Housing Services 
and Housing Repairs.  

• Periodic health and safety audits are undertaken in each service area.  

• Quarterly dashboard reports and an annual report are produced by the Health and Safety, Emergency 
Planning and Business Continuity Lead, which outline health and safety performance.  

• Incident and accident reporting and investigation has a defined process and is effectively managed.  

• The Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead ensures that the Council 
stays up to date with legislative changes and is suitably qualified to fulfil this role. He is currently doing 
a health and safety degree and is part of a countywide Health and Safety Group.   

• Health and safety responsibilities were included in a sample of job descriptions reviewed.  

• A Health and Safety Working Group has been established and will meet for the first time on 9 March 
2023. 

• The health and safety advisory function has been expanded to provide further assistance across the 
Council.  

 

The following four recommendations have been raised which are areas and processes that can be 
strengthened further: 
 

• The completion of risk assessments and corresponding actions raised are effectively monitored and 
reported and it is clearly defined and understood who is responsible for doing this.    

64



  Executive Summary 

4 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

 

 

• The health and safety governance structure is reviewed and enhanced by establishing health and safety 
champions within the service areas. 

• Health and safety training for those with key health and safety responsibilities should be strengthened 
to ensure each person has completed the IOSH Managing Safely training. The Council should ensure 
that all staff completing risk assessments have completed the Council’s risk assessment training so 
that that there is a consistent approach and understanding of the risk management procedures.  

• The audit methodology should be clarified to define how often an area should be reviewed. Actions 
raised in each audit should be assigned action owners and deadlines and the results of the audits 
should be reported on and regularly monitored by management.  
 

Additionally, an advisory point has been suggested in relation to clarifying wording in the Health and Safety 
Policy.  
 
We would like to thank all of the staff involved in the audit for their help in undertaking the review. 65



  Executive Summary 

5 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

 

Managing your 
risks 
 

 

Good risk management, including maintaining risk registers, helps you to identify, understand and reduce 
the chance of risks having a negative impact on achievement of objectives. 
 
It is pleasing to note that during our audit work we did not identify any significant risks that we feel should be 
considered for inclusion on the service risk register. 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

66



  Management Response 

6 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Management 
Response 

 

The substantial assurance for this audit provides confidence in the positive work that has been 
undertaken in this key strategic area of business over the last year. 

The revised team structures enhances the value and higher emphasis corporately on this key 
function. 

The newly formed Health & Safety Working Group will provide structure and resilience to the 
cascading of information and the continuous improvement methodology the Council is aiming to 
embed. 

Implementation of the identifed actions will put us in a strong position moving forwards.  The lack of 
any significant risks identified through this audit is testament to the current focus provided by the 
team. 

67



 Action Plan 

7 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

1 

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

Risk identification, assessment, action planning, reporting, inspections and 
recording of Health and Safety risks are not conducted in-line with policy and 
procedural guidance, leading to reputational damage and the potential of 
financial loss for the authority. 

MEDIUM GREEN 

Findings 

We reviewed the Council’s ongoing risk identification and a risk assessment process for health and safety matters and found generic 
risk assessments are completed by the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead, but in the main, 
specific risk assessments are completed and managed within the individual service areas. Whilst risk assessments are being 
completed, we found there is not a central schedule of risk assessments outlining what health and safety risk assessment should be 
completed across the Council.  We also reviewed the process followed in Street Scene, Housing Services and Housing Repairs and 
found that none of those maintained a documented risk assessment schedule locally. The Health and Safety, Emergency Planning 
and Business Continuity Lead explained they are currently looking to implement some health and safety management software and 
would like to include a dashboard of each service area’s risk assessments with due dates and automated reminders for when they 
fall due.  
 
In addition to this, we reviewed a sample of generic risk assessments and service area risk assessments and found the following 
issues: 
 
Service Area Risk Assessments: 

• The Heads of Service believed it was the role of the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead to 
decide what risk assessments should be completed, their frequency and monitor their completion. However, we noted that it 
is stipulated in the Health and Safety Policy that this role sits with the Heads of Service.  

• Actions from the risk assessments were not recorded in a standalone action log with clear owners and deadlines. 
 
 
 
 

68



 Action Plan 

8 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Implications 

Without central or clear monitoring there is a risk that risk assessments are not completed in line with an agreed frequency and or 
actions from the risk assessments are not addressed.   

Recommendation Priority level 

1.1 A schedule of health and safety risk assessments which need to be completed across the Council 
should be collated.   

1.2 The completion of the risk assessments and actions should be recorded and monitored. 
Medium 

Agreed Action(s) Responsibility Implementation date 

1.1 Service areas will complete and retain a risk assessment log and provide to 
Corporate H&S for oversight 

1.2 As above. Risk assessments have an identified section for action owners and 
completion should be noted on the log. Corporate Risk Assessment guidance 
will be amended to include this requirement and circulated to Heads of 
Service 

Service areas with 
Corporate H&S 
support 

June 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

69



 Action Plan 

9 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

2 

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

The Council has inappropriate governance structures in place to manage 
Health & Safety, including insufficient capacity and capability levels and no 
defined measures and targets in place. 

MEDIUM GREEN 

Findings 

The Council has a Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead who is responsible for providing health and 
safety guidance, drafting policies and procedures, carrying out generic risk assessments and health and safety audits.  The 
management of health and safety itself and on-going specific risk assessments sits within the service areas and is managed by the 
Heads of Service.   
 
We reviewed the job descriptions for a sample of roles within the service areas and whilst we noted that health and safety management 
was incorporated within the job descriptions, the Council has not got a clear and defined structure of Health and Safety Champions. 
In addition to this, we met with the Heads of Service for Housing Repairs, Housing Services and Street Scene and each expressed 
concern about the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead being a single point of failure within the 
Council, being the only person within the Council with in-depth health and safety knowledge. We have subsequently been advised 
that the Health and Safety Advisory Function now has two more IOSH trained members and health and safety knowledge will be 
shared amongst the team, therefore reducing the single point of failure risk. 
 
We were advised that the Council plans to form a Health and Safety Working Group to provide central oversight over health and 
safety matters. The first meeting for this group is scheduled for 9 March 2023.    
 

Implications 

Without a robust health and safety governance structure, which includes clearly defined roles and oversight there is a risk that the 
Council’s health and safety matters are not sufficiently and or consistently managed. 

 

70



 Action Plan 

10 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Recommendations Priority level 

2.1 The Council should establish and document a clear governance structure for health and safety which 
includes health and safety champions for each service area.  The roles and responsibilities for a health 
and safety champion should be defined and documented.  

 

Medium 

Agreed Action(s) Responsibility Implementation date 

2.1   The Health and Safety Champions role will be evaluated as suggested in 3.1 
and added to the Policy once evaluated and extent of the roles potential 
evaluated within the group 

Health and Safety, 
Emergency Planning 
and Business 
Continuity Lead 

September 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

71



 Action Plan 

11 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

3 

Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

The Council has inappropriate governance structures in place to manage 
Health & Safety, including insufficient capacity and capability levels and no 
defined measures and targets in place. 

MEDIUM GREEN 

Findings 

We reviewed the health and safety training completed by key people with health and safety responsibilities in Street Scene, Housing 
Services and Housing Repairs and found inconsistencies in who had completed the Institution of Occupational Safety and Health 
(IOSH) training. Whilst this was not documented by the Council, we were advised that those with key health and safety responsibilities 
should complete this training as the training delivers the knowledge needed for those in positions of responsibility to identify, evaluate 
and control workplace health and safety risks.  
 
We also reviewed a sample of risk assessments completed in the same service areas and found the risk assessments were not 
always undertaken by someone that had received the Council’s required risk assessment training.  However, assurance was provided 
that completion was supported by the Health and Safety, Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Lead.  Training has been 
scheduled for members of staff that will be completing risk assessments going forward.   
 

Implications 

There is a risk that health and safety risks are not effectively managed and mitigated if those in key health and safety roles do not 
have the appropriate knowledge and capability.  

Recommendation Priority level 

3.1 Once a governance structure with defined health and safety champions has been established, the 
training requirements for each health and safety role should be agreed. 

3.2 Risk assessment training should be completed by the members of staff who will be completing risk 
assessments going forward.  

Medium 

72



 Action Plan 

12 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

3.3 The completion of the required training should be monitored.  

Agreed Action(s) Responsibility Implementation date 

3.1   The Health & Safety Working Group will initially be ambassadors raising the 
profile of health and safety at service level. The role will be evaluated after 6 
months with any relevant training identified at that point. 

3.2   Completion of risk assessments will be undertaken by those who are 
trained. 

3.3   Completion of risk assessment training will be monitored. 

Health and Safety, 
Emergency Planning 
and Business 
Continuity Lead 

September 2023  

 

June 2023 

 

Ongoing 

 

  73



 Action Plan 

13 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

4 
Risk Description Current Rating Target Rating 

There is inadequate monitoring activity applied to oversee and direct Health 
and Safety activities, leading to reputational damage for the authority.  

MEDIUM GREEN 

Findings 

The health and safety advisory function undertake audits of health and safety management across the Council.  We reviewed the 
audit framework and noted that there is not a clearly defined audit methodology to determine how often a service area should be 
audited. We were advised that those service areas deemed to be higher risk due to the number of reported incidents were audited 
annually and those with fewer incidents reported were audited every two years.    
 
We reviewed a sample of audits and noted that there were no deadlines for the recommendations raised in the audit reports and no 
action owners.  The health and safety advisory function do not monitor the completion of actions until that area is audited again. We 
were advised that the service area should monitor the completion of their own actions. However, the service areas were not able to 
evidence that a log of audit actions with deadlines and actions owners was maintained.  
 
We recommend that audit actions be monitored by the Health and Safety Working Group. 

Implications 

There is a risk that health and safety risks are not identified in a timely manner and, if they are identified, actions are not implemented 
to help manage the risk.  

Recommendation Priority level 

4.1 The defined audit methodology should be documented and agreed by Corporate Management Team. 
4.2 Actions arising in health and safety audits should be assigned action owners and deadlines.  
4.3 The completion of audit actions should be monitored by the Health and Safety Working Group.  

 

Medium 

74



 Action Plan 

14 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Agreed Action(s) Responsibility Implementation date 

4.1   The defined methodology will revert to an annual assessment of all. This will 
be reviewed as and when the management system can be implemented 

4.2   Actions arising from the health and safety audits will be assigned owners 
and deadlines 

4.3   Actions will be monitored by the Corporate H&S Team and also feed  into 
the working group. The Corporate H&S Team hold the professional 
competence to consider and support progress 

  Health and Safety, 
Emergency Planning 
and Business 
Continuity Lead 

April 2023 

 

April 2023 

 

June 2023 

 

75



 Advisory Points - Adding Value through Efficiencies 

15 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

The following item is an advisory recommendation / comment arising from the audit, which management may wish to consider 

implementing to improve efficiency of the system or performance. 

Ref Finding Advice 

AP1 

The Health and Safety Policy split out the roles for the Corporate 

Management Team and Heads of Service however upon further 

discussion we found these were the same and as such should be 

combined. 

The Health and Safety Policy states that the Corporate 

Management Team should provide leadership to the Council’s 

Health and Safety Group.  We found this should be reworded as 

the Health and Safety Group will be advising the Management 

Team. 

The Health and Safety Policy should be amended to 

combine Corporate Management Team and Heads 

of Service responsibilities. 

The section regarding the role of the Health and 

Safety Group versus Corporate Management Team 

(highlighted in AP1 finding) should be reworded.  

 

 

76



                                          Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 

16 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

 High Substantial 
 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, and 
the operation of controls and / or 
performance. 
 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity gives us a substantial level 
of confidence (assurance) on service 
delivery arrangements, management 
of risks, and operation of controls and 
/ or performance. 
 

 

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 
operating effectively. 

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 
to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 
adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 
activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.   
 

Limited Low 
 
Our critical review or assessment on the 
activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, and 
operation of controls and / or 
performance. 

 

 
Our critical review or assessment on 
the activity identified significant 
concerns on service delivery 
arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or 
performance. 
 

 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 
operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 
unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 
risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 
achieve its objectives. 
 

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 
risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 
appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 
of the activity not achieving its objectives is high. 
 

 

77



                                          Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions 

17 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

 

 

                  

Action Priority 

 
High 
  

 
Immediate management attention is required - an internal control or risk issue 
where there is a high certainty of:   

• substantial loss 

• non-compliance with corporate strategies, policies or values 

• serious reputational damage 

• adverse regulatory impact and/or material fines (action taken usually 
within 3 months). 

 

 
Medium 

 
Timely management action is warranted - an internal control or risk issue that 
could lead to: 

• financial loss 

• reputational damage 

• adverse regulatory impact, public sanction and / or immaterial fines 
(action taken usually within 6 to 12 months). 

 

78



                              

18 | P a g e  
 

Unrestricted 

Disclaimer 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to 

our attention during our internal audit work.  Our quality 

assurance processes ensure that our work is conducted in 

conformance with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 

and that the information contained in this report is as accurate 

as possible – we do not provide absolute assurance that 

material errors, fraud or loss do not exist.   

This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members 

and Management of SKDC and details be made available to 

specified external organisations, including external auditors, but 

otherwise the report should not be used or referred to in whole 

or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third 

party is accepted as the report has not been prepared and is not 

intended for any other purpose. 

 

79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee 
 
 

Date 15 March 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes 
Deputy Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

 

2022/23 Accounting Policies and publication date 

of the Statement of Accounts 
 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Assistant Director of Finance 

  alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the preparation of the 

Statement of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code). 

 

In line with the Committee’s terms of reference it is a requirement that the proposed policies 

are reported prior to the production of the Statement of Accounts. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Approves the Statement of Accounting Policies, as set out at Appendix A 
to this report to be used in the production of the 2022/23 financial 
statements. 

2. Notes the amended dates for the publication of the draft and final audited 
accounts. 

 

81

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Prior to the compilation of the Statement of Accounts for 2022/23 it is important 

that members of Governance and Audit Committee have the opportunity to discuss 

and comment on the accounting policies to be used in the production of the 

financial statements.  These policies if agreed, will be applied to the treatment of 

all transactions that make up the figures in the Statement of Accounts to ensure 

that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council 

at the balance sheet date and of its income and expenditure for the financial year. 

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Financial Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 Local authorities are required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to 

prepare a Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant regulations. The 

policies referred to are a requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) 

Regulations 2015.  Any updates and amendments should be reported to 

Governance and Audit Committee in accordance with its role to approve the 

Statement of Accounting Policies. 

 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring Officer  

 

 

 

 

 

82



2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 As part of its Statement of Accounts, the Council needs to disclose the accounting 

policies it has applied to all material balances and transactions. These are produced 

in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 

Kingdom 2022/23 (The Code). 

 

2.2 It is good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the 

production and approval of draft accounts and to this end all accounting policies 

have been reviewed for the 2022/23 financial year to ensure that they comply with 

The Code.  The 2022/23 CIPFA Code has only minor changes compared to 

2021/22, none of which are judged material in relation to the Council’s Statement of 

Accounts and so only minor amendments have been made to the 2021/22 policies.  

Appendix A details the accounting policies to be applied in the preparation of the 

2022/23 Statement of Accounts.   

 

2.3 The date for the publication of the draft Statement of Accounts was amended to 31 

July in 2020/21 and 2021/22 to recognise the impact of COVID-19 on Council 

resources.  The following table details the publication dates for the draft and audited 

2022/23 Statement of Accounts subject to government consultation.   

 

 Publication date from 2022/23 Statement of 
Accounts 

Draft Statement of Accounts 31 May 2023 

Audited Statement of Accounts 30 September 2023 

 

 

2.4 During the year end process there may be changes required to the policies arising 

from changes in circumstances or updated guidance.  These will be agreed with 

the Section 151 Officer and reported to Governance and Audit Committee 

alongside the final Statement of Accounts. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 The accounting policies have been produced in accordance with The Code which 

the Council is required to comply with when producing the Statement of Accounts 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options are available as the Council is required to comply with The Code. 

 

 

 

 

83



5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 As part of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 Local Authorities 

are required to include Accounting Policies in the Statement of Accounts. 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix A – 2022/23 Accounting Policies 

 

  

 

 

 

84



ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES 
 
The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2022/23 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2023.  The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. These regulations 
require the Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting 
practices. These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and supported by International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS).  
 
The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments. 
 

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE 
 
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular: 
 

• Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council. 

 

• Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet. 

 

• Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made. 
 

• Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract. 

 

• Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected.  

 

• The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been considered and 
deemed to have no material impact. 

 
III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

 
Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 

85



that mature in 30 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value. 
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management. 
 

IV. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year. 
 

• Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service. 

• Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 
accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written 
off. 

• Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service. 
 
The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two. 
 

V. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES 
 
Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf 
of major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax 
and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund 
(i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council 
tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major 
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the 
amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted. 
 
Accounting for Council TAX and NDR 
 
The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the 
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of 
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments and prepayments and appeals. 
  

86



 
VI.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

 
Benefits Payable during Employment 
 
Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 
bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees.  These expenses are charged on 
an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement.  
 
Termination Benefits  
 
Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate 
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.  They are charged on an accruals basis 
to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no 
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a 
restructuring. 
 
Post-Employment Benefits  
 
Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered 
by Lincolnshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.   
 
The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when 
employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions. 
 
Local Government Pension Scheme 
 
The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme: 
 

• The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current employees.  

 

• The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet at their fair value. 
 

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components: 
 

• Service Cost comprising: 
 

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year –  allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to 
the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked 
 

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 

87



and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs 
 

• Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the 
Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Remeasurement comprising: 
 

- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined 
benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure 
 

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumption – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. 

 
- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as 

employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense.   

 
In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.    
 
In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees. 
 
Discretionary Benefits 
 
The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme. 
 

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
Financial Liabilities  
 
Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised.  
 
For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest 

88



charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for 
the year in the loan agreement. 
 
Financial Assets 

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at:  
 

• amortised cost  

• fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and  

• fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
 

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument).  

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost. 
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are based 
on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for Statements 
the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this means that the 
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued 
interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount receivable for the year in the loan 
agreement.  

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES 
at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the voluntary 
organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the loan in the 
Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on the General 
Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the reconciliation of amounts 
debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required against the General Fund Balance 
is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.  

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES.  

Expected Credit Loss Model  

The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at amortised 
cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model also applies to 
lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are recognised for trade 
receivables (debtors) held by the Council.  

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows might 
not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk plays a 
crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an instrument 
was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk has not 
increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-month 
expected losses.  

89



Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss  

Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the 
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are 
initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are recognised as 
they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services.  

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following techniques:  

 

• instruments with quoted market prices – the market price  

• other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow 
analysis.  

 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following 
three levels:  

• Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the 
Council can access at the measurement date.  

• Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly.  

• Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset.  
 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement.  
 

VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that: 

• The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and 

• The grants or contributions will be received 
 
Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potentially embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor. 
 
Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 

IX. HERITAGE ASSETS 
 
Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture.   They are initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not available, values 
are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not 
disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the Council’s heritage assets, insurance 
valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to be unique, and it is 

90



not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. 
 
Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an asset is 
considered to have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, revaluation gains 
and losses and impairments of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s 
policies relating to property, plant and equipment.   
 
The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred. 
 

X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable 
and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.  
 
Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.   
 
Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore 
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its 
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset 
might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure 
Line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
 
Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 
 
The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of 
acquisition.  Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are 
expected from them. 
 

XI. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER ENTITIES 
 
The Council has a material interest in Environment SK Ltd.  The nature of this relationship has 
been assessed and they are deemed to be subsidiaries.  The Council is not currently required 
to produce group accounts on the grounds of materiality.  In respect of Gravitas Ltd  and 
LeisureSK Ltd the Council produces group accounts. 
 

XII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS 
 
Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 
Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during 
the financial year.   
 

91



XIII. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 
 
Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of 
services or production of goods or is held for sale. 
 
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal.  
 
Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have 
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve. 

 
XIV. LEASES 

 
Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification. 
 
Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of specific assets. 
 
The Council as Lessee 
 
Finance Leases: 
 
Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet 
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by 
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor e.g. payments net of financing costs. Initial direct 
costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into the lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease payments are apportioned between: 

• A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 
write down the lease liability, and 

• A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement). 

 
Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease 

92



term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does 
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period). 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments (e.g. there is a rent free period at 
the commencement of the lease). 
 
The Council as Lessor 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and replaced by a long-
term debtor in the Balance Sheet valued on the future income due under the finance lease. 
Operating Leases 
 
Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of 
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease).  
 

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES  
 
The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance 
with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance.  
 

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment.  
 
Recognition:  
 
Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.   
 
The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the 
purchase of motor vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only 
part of the expenditure has occurred within a financial year that expenditure would be included 
in the balance sheet even if it was below the de minimis level.  
  

93



Measurement 
 
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising: 
 

• the purchase price 

• any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 
be capable of operating in the manner intended by management 

 
The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction. 
 
The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council. 
 
Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases: 

• Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social 
housing (EUV-SH).  The social housing discount applied in 2023/24 is 42%. 

• Community assets and assets under construction –  historic cost.  

• Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost 

• All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of 
fair value because of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case fair value is estimated 
using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method. 

 
Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been 
material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of property 
assets are carried out by the District Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent 
of the Council. The method of valuations is as recommended by CIPFA and in accordance 
with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-valued on 31 March of 
the following year.   
 
Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the 
opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the 
extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue 
account within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.  In this case the 
revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and any further gain is then taken 
to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement. 
 
Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, 
are revaluation losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services.   Any such charge taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement. 
 
The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account. 
  

94



Impairment 
 
Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall. 
 
Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by: 
 

• Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of 
the accumulated gains) 

• Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,  

 
Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised. 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction). 
 
A full year of depreciation is charged in the year of acquisition and none in the year of disposal 
 
Depreciation is calculated on the following bases: 
 

• Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life. 
 

• Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The 
finite useful life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council 
Dwellings is usually 50 years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years. 

 

• Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is 
assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 
years.  Some assets have a longer life span, up to 30 years.   

 

• Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum. 
 

• Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated. 
 

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately. 
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.  
 

95



Componentisation 
 
Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the 
financial year are considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a component the 
value of the part of the asset being considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value 
of the asset, and have a life less than or equal to half that of the main asset.  When a 
component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is derecognised and the 
new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not known, this 
is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for 
depreciation and impairment over the old component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index 
will be used. 
 
The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support 
service accounts and trading accounts.  
 
Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
  
When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset 
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at 
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease 
to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised 
only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale. 
 
If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell. 
 
Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale. 
 
When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited 
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. 
 
Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 
of receipts related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts 
remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital 
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement).  
 

96



The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing.  
 
 

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
Provisions  
 
Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
 
Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement when the Council becomes aware of the obligation and 
are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to 
settle the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties. 
 
When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a 
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the 
relevant service. 
 
Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is 
settled. 
 
The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability 
insurance claims. 
 
Contingent Liabilities 
 
A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably. 
 
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts. 
 
Contingent Assets 
 
A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. 
 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential. 
  

97



XVIII. RESERVES 
 
The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure.   
 
Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies. 
 

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE 
 
Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.   Where 
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources 
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that 
there is no impact on the level of council tax. 
 

XX. VAT  
 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income. 
 

XXI. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
 
The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability. 

 
The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest. 
 
When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a 
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest 
and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 

98



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee 
 

15 March 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Adam Stokes, 
Deputy Leader of the Council 
 

 
 

Strategic Risk Register 
 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 tracey.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

To provide an update on the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

 

Recommendation 

 

The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the progress made of the 
actions for each of the strategic risks and identifies any areas of feedback.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

99

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Implications 
 

1.1 Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal 

and governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, 

safeguarding, staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the 

impact on the Council’s declaration of a climate change emergency, the following 

implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.2 There are no specific finance or procurement implications arising from this report.  

The Strategic Risk Register is regularly reviewed to ensure agreed actions are 

implemented and new risks and remedial actions are identified as necessary.  

 

Completed by:  Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.3 There are no specific legal and governance implications arising from this report. 

 

Completed by:  Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring 

Officer  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.4 These are contained within the report. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  One of the key areas for Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of 

reference, is to monitor and review the risk management arrangements in place and 

the activities that are being undertaken to mitigate those risks.  In accordance with 

Governance and Audit Committee’s workplan the Strategic Risk Register will be 

presented to Committee twice a year for review.  The Strategic Risk Register was 

last reviewed at the 28 September 2022 meeting of Governance and Audit 

Committee.   

 

2.2 The Strategic Risk Register is a dynamic and responsive document and is reviewed 

to reflect the current and changing environment of the Council from both internal 

and external influences.  The risk controls are those currently in place across the 

respective risk area and the ‘Action’ column captures the emerging and developing 

actions to further strengthen and mitigate the risk. 

 

2.3 The format of the Register consists of the following: 

 

• Risk Title and Description – brief description of risk 

100



• Effects of Risk Realisation – what would occur should the risk materialise 

• Current Circumstances – summary of the present situation 

• Risk Controls – summary of all the risk controls that are currently in place 

• Residual Risk Score – assessment of risk after risk controls considered 

• Actions – list of actions being undertaken along with a progress update 

 

2.4 Corporate Management Team has reviewed the strategic risks, including the 

actions, and the updated Register is attached at Appendix A with changes and 

action updates captured below. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Strategic Risk 1 – Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

 

 Current circumstances have been updated to reflect the improvement in 

compliance in terms of landlord health and safety.  The level of non-compliance 

has led to an increased level of risk exposure.  Agreed actions are being 

implemented in order to seek removal of the Regulatory Notice at the earliest 

opportunity. 

 

 Progress has been made with implementing the actions with one being completed 

and two in progress: 

 

• Completion of the mid-year management assurance statement. 

• Combined Assurance Review currently being undertaken by Assurance 

Lincolnshire.  Questionnaires (including questions around critical activities, key 

projects, key partnerships, and service risks) have been completed ahead of 

workshops with assistant directorates mid-March.  The Combined Assurance 

Report will be presented to Governance and Audit Committee in June 2023. 

• Progress ongoing with social housing non-compliance with continued 

engagement with the Regulator.  There has been significant improvements 

across key performance areas and robust action plans are in place.  External 

audit validation commenced December 2022 to support evidence to seek 

removal of the Notice. 

 

3.2 Strategic Risk 2 – Achieving Council transformation 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions with two being 

completed and two in progress: 

 

• The Council offices relocated to The Picture House St Catherine’s Road 

Grantham on 9 January 2023.  The modern, open-plan office will improve 

business efficiency, working conditions and save an estimated £300,000 a year 

in running costs.  

101



• 2023/24 budget setting process has followed the Corporate Plan aims.  

Resources will be allocated appropriately to ensure actions are delivered.  The 

2023/24 Budget Framework was approved by Council on 1 March 2023. 

• Partnerships Register is being finalised subject to review by Corporate 

Management Team in April 2023. 

• ICT Strategy was approved by Finance, Economic Development and 

Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 27 September 2022. 

 

3.3 Strategic Risk 3 – Supporting communities 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions all of which are 

ongoing: 

 

• Building condition surveys at the leisure centres have resulted in a replacement 

boiler at Stamford Leisure Pool, replacement air conditioning at Bourne Leisure 

Centre and replacement fire doors are being installed at Bourne, Grantham 

and Stamford.  The remaining works vary across the three centres including 

replacement air conditioning, replacement boilers, filter refurbishments, 

Ultraviolet (UV) System update, chemical dosing system, fire doors, water 

system works and wave machines. These works will continue into 2023/24 

financial year.  

• Finance, Economic Development and Corporate Services Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee received a progress report on public realm projects; 

Strategic site acquisition; Station Approach Masterplan; Upper Floor Grants 

Programme; Grantham Town Team, Programme Support and Recruitment; 

and a summary of engagement with the Department for Levelling Up, Housing 

and Communities (DLUHC). There has been a project change with the 

reduction in scope of the Station Approach scheme, agreement to a project 

adjustment will be sought from DLUHC. 

• At Council on 26 January 2023 a grant of £3,898,582 (revenue expenditure of 

£3,069,306 and capital expenditure of £673,334) was accepted from the UK 

Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) for 2022/23, 2023/24 and 2024/25, along 

with a £20,000 revenue contribution towards development costs of the UKSPF 

Investment Plan. A wide range of Economic Development and ‘Communities’ 

interventions across South Kesteven eligible for UKSPF investment. The 

inaugural Member UKSPF Board met on 8 February 2023 to agree the Year 

One project list. 

• The Government response to the Consistency in Household Recycling 

Consultation is still awaited.  This will provide the framework to implement the 

Environment Act 2021 which includes the introduction of weekly food waste 

collections and separate collections of other recyclable materials.  Regulations 

relating to the collection of food waste are expected to be laid in summer 2023 

with proposed implementation date from March 2025, subject to any 

transitional arrangements agreed with waste disposal authorities.    New 

burdens funding is expected (to be announced December 2023), however, 

details the funding formula and criteria are still awaited.  There will be 

102



significant expenditure expected eg additional vehicles, premises space for 

additional vehicles, staffing etc.  The potential implementation of twin stream 

(separate collection of paper and card) from January 2024 will support the 

requirements of the Environment Act. The Government has responded to the 

consultation on Extended Producer Responsibility which will introduce 

payments to Councils based on them being effective and efficient.  Payments 

are expected to start from April 2024, but the formula and details are still 

awaited.   The review of the waste collection rounds is expected to be 

completed by the end of March 2023 with modelling of scenarios then being 

undertaken which would seek to improve efficiency and better inform future 

procurement needs will provide options for further consideration to restructure 

rounds.       

• A tenant-wide survey has been undertaken – the “Big Listen” – to inform service 

improvements.  30-year Housing Revenue Account Business Plan is being 

developed over the next six months.  A restructure of the housing team has 

been completed and provides a fit for purpose structure moving forwards. 

• An allocation has been made for the provision of free public Wi-Fi, having 

received agreement from the inaugural UKSPF Member Board, to be 

incorporated into the wider capital programme to upgrade the Council’s 

network of CCTV cameras from analogue to digital.  The Wi-Fi would serve the 

public spaces where CCTV is installed in Grantham, Stamford, Bourne and 

Market Deeping.  A proposal to relocate the CCTV function to within the Police 

headquarters is being progressed. 

• Consultation, which will be used to feed into a draft Cultural Strategy, has been 

ongoing and will continue until the consultant is ready to deliver their thoughts 

on the strategy or to offer solutions to the challenges we are facing.  As part of 

information gathering, and for Members to share their thoughts and ambitions 

for the service, a workshop took place in January 2023. Two very informative 

meetings were also held at Stamford and Grantham.  The Cultural Strategy will 

pull together the Council’s vision and ambition, backed by a clear (and 

measurable) action plan.  Legal advice on setting up a trust model for Stamford 

Arts Centre is currently under officer review. 

• The Local Plan review rolls the Local Plan period forward by five years from 

2036-2041 to ensure the Local Plan covers a 20-year period (2021-2041). 

Work on the Local Plan Review began in April 2020 in line with the adopted 

Local Development Scheme (LDS) which sets out the timetable for delivery of 

the review.  In line with the published timetable a consultation on the Regulation 

18 Draft Local Plan was due to be carried out in March 2023.  This has been 

delayed due to proposed amendments to the National Planning Policy 

Framework (NPPF) which has been published for consultation by the 

Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities.  The proposed 

changes to the NPPF have implications for the Local Plan review and a short 

adjustment to the Local Plan Review timetable will allow Officers to fully 

consider and incorporate any changes necessary and ensure that the next 

Local Plan is compliant with National Policy.  A revised LDS will be taken to 

Cabinet in due course which will set out the new timetable. 

103



3.4 Strategic Risk 4 – Achieving future financial resilience 

 

Current circumstances has been updated to reflect that the current financial 

climate is causing pressure on specific costs such as energy costs and inflationary 

driven services.  These rising costs are outside the direct control of the Council, 

but a range of responses are being developed to manage the Council’s exposure 

to the financial challenges that are being presented.    

 

Good progress has been made with implementing the actions with three being 

completed, one in progress and two new actions: 

 

• Financial modelling was undertaken alongside the development of the Medium 

Term Financial Plan.  Financial risk ratio analysis was presented to Members 

as part of  the budget for 2023/24. 

• Robust capital scoring and appraisal methodology formed part of the capital 

strategy with all capital bids presented on a corporate template and scored 

alongside the Corporate Plan. 

• Treasury Management Strategy 2023/24 has been updated in accordance with 

the Financial Management Code and was approved by Council on 1 March 

2023.  It will continue to be reviewed in response to the current financial 

climate. 

• Corporate assets are being reviewed to balance the Council’s operational 

needs, holding costs and the disposal opportunity.  To support this review an 

Asset Disposal Strategy was approved by Cabinet in December 2021.  The 

Corporate Asset Management Strategy was approved by Cabinet on 22 

September 2022. 

• New action – Undertake a review of Council assets that have a high 

dependency on utility consumption and introduce a range of energy efficiency 

initiatives to reduce consumption and associated costs. 

• New action – Undertake regular reviews of the MTFP in response to the 

changes in operational costs. 

 

3.5 Strategic Risk 5 – Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

 

Current circumstances has been updated to capture the restructuring activity that 

took place this financial year has had a positive impact on creating a more optimal 

structure that is better aligned to deliver the Council’s goals.  

 

Early indications from the 2023 Engagement Survey (just undertaken) indicate that 

overall, engagement has significantly improved this year.  The survey findings will 

be presented to the Employment Committee on 15 March 2023.  

 

Progress has been made with implementing the actions with one being completed 

and the remaining are ongoing: 

 

104



• New Ways of Working protocol has been developed, signed off and cascaded 

with flexible guidance on agile working that meets business, team, and 

individual’s needs.  A working group developed direction of four strands of work 

in the pay review, each of which have been progressed including the 

introduction of career grades and revised job evaluation process. 

• Annual appraisals were completed across the Council in 2022/23.  The cycle 

commences again in March 2023. 

• Review of resources was undertaken with Phase 2 of the restructure being 

completed. 

• Employee Survey action plan was created and implemented with input from the 

People Panel and the wider Council.  2023 Survey has been conducted and 

responsive action plan will be created. 

• Learning and development plan for 2023 has been deployed.  Institute of 

Leadership & Management training is taking place during February and March 

2023. 

• Political awareness training session was held in Quarter 3, and these will be 

ongoing.  Member/Officer Protocol in place as part of the Constitution. 

Development sessions facilitated by the LGA held with the Corporate 

Management Team, Cabinet, the Administration and the Opposition Group 

regarding roles and responsibilities. 

 

3.6 Strategic Risk 6 – Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy, national 

political change, and changes to the external environment 

 

The Policy Officer provides updates on policy changes at a national level and 

identifies potential issues at a local level that may impact on the Council.  A new 

policy control framework register has been implemented for the Council.  Work has 

commenced on the Corporate Plan refresh with swot analysis, operating 

environments, economic and political outlooks identified.  State of District report 

being developed. 

 

The Cost of Living Response Group is focusing on assessing the impact on the 

vulnerable parts of the community to ensure that they receive the right level of 

support and assistance.  In addition, those services involved ie Benefits, Housing 

and Revenues are coordinating support and advice to those requiring it.  An action 

plan has been developed to support the community including residents and 

businesses.  To help South Kesteven residents deal with the cost of living a 

Wellbeing Fair was held on 25 February – participants included the DWP, the 

Money and Pension Service, Shine Lincs, Renew Grantham, One You 

Lincolnshire, LeisureSK, Inspire Plus, Homemade House Cookery School, We Are 

With You Grantham, Illegal money lending, Morrisons, the Co-Op, Wellbeing 

Lincs, SKDC's Revenues and Benefits Team, Citizens' Advice, Grantham 

Passage, SKDC's Housing/Homeless Team, First Aiders for Mental Health, 

AgeUK Lincoln and South Lincolnshire and the Notts and Lincs Credit Union. 

 

 

105



3.7 Strategic Risk 7 – Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s data 

and assets from cyber threats 

 

 Good progress has been made with implementing the actions all of which are 

ongoing: 

 

• Completion of annual cyber training is being monitored to ensure that it is 

undertaken. 

• Cyber Action Policy was approved in 2022.  Acceptable Use of IT Policy is 

currently being reviewed. 

• Work continues to remove end of life devices and applications. Mitigation such 

as third-party software tools and read only access are being added where 

necessary. 

• 90% of the actions identified in the Cyber Treatment Plan have been completed 

as summarised below:  

− 18 of the 20 High risk recommendations complete (2 in progress)   

− 8 of the 9 Medium risk recommendations complete (1 in progress)   

− 3 Low risk recommendations complete 

 

3.8 Next steps 

 

In accordance with the Committee’s Terms of Reference, the Strategic Risk 

Register is presented twice a year and is next due in September 2023.  An 

externally facilitated workshop will be held with Corporate Management Team and 

Assistant Directors to ensure that the register remains current and provides an 

opportunity to identify any new risks.  The Strategic Risk Register will capture the 

output from the workshop which will be scheduled for June 2023. 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 No other options are considered other than to note the report. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 The report is for noting. 

 

6. Appendices 
 

6.1 Appendix A – Draft Strategic Risk Register  

 

 

106



 

Appendix B – Draft Strategic Risk Register – March 2023 

Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

1.  Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

Risk Description 
This risk focuses on the potential for failure of the Council’s core 
internal control (and governance) framework but leading to a 
significant loss ie financial and otherwise eg H&S failing.   
 
In effect the Council should be able to mitigate such a risk through 
rigorous review of design and application of the controls, hence 
ensuring that internal audit and other assurance activities are 
appropriately focused. 
 
The Council is entering a changing phase including changes in 
behaviour, management structure, working styles and culture which 
will require a flexible and adaptive internal control environment.   
 
The ramifications of a significant control risk failure are substantial, 
not only with regard to the loss but often the rectification costs post 
event, including financial and reputational. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Potential for fraud, error, and loss 
- Reduced financial stability 
- Reputation damage resulting in negative media attention 
- Potential for harm/injury/death 
- Qualified External Audit Opinion/Internal Audit Opinion 
- Regulatory non-compliance (GDPR, HSE) and potential for 

government intervention 
 

Current Circumstances  
An internal audit review of housing compliance in March 2021 
resulted in a negative opinion being provided, leading to the Council 
making a self-referral to the Regulator of Social Housing for breaches 
of the Homes Standard.  An Improvement Plan, agreed with the 
Regulator, has been implemented to address the matters raised and 
the Council is now in a position of compliance in terms of landlord 
health and safety, continuous improvement across all compliance 
areas remains a key focus.  The historic level of non-compliance led to 
an increased level of risk exposure.  Work is ongoing to seek removal 
of the Regulatory Notice at the earliest opportunity.   

A. Annual internal audit plan developed by senior officers and 
members is targeted at key risks areas and responsive to new 
areas of risk  

B. External/internal audit regime   
C. Development of staff training plan in connection with core 

responsibilities and duties ie data protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information etc 

D. Annual Assurance Statements compiled testing compliance 
with key business activities, supporting Annual Governance 
Statement compilation 

E. Maintenance of a range of policies that underpin the control 
framework – Financial Regulations, Counter Fraud Strategy, 
Risk Management Framework, Contract Procedure Rules 
coupled with staff training   

F. Regular reporting at Governance and Audit Committee  
G. Compliance with Transparency Code  
H. Compliance with Local Code of Corporate Governance 
I. Review and update of key policies completed in last 12 

months with a view that these will be kept under review 
J. Key compliance roles identified and assigned ie Section 151 

Officer, Monitoring Officer, Data Protection Officer, H&S etc  
K. Compliance with information governance including General 

Data Protection Rule 
L. Review and update of Business Continuity Plans 
M. Corporate Plan 2021-2023  

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Completion of management Annual 
Assurance Statements and 
development of appropriate actions, 
tracked through to completion 
including evidence 
 
Mid-year assurance statements 
completed which will be reviewed 
alongside the Combined Assurance 
review. 
 

ii. Combined Assurance review to be 
undertaken by Assurance Lincolnshire  
 
Combined Assurance review 
commenced.  Workshops with 
Assurance Lincolnshire being held mid-
March.  Combined Assurance Report 
will be presented to Governance and 
Audit Committee in June 2023. 

 
iii. Undertake actions required to address 

Social Housing Regulator non-
compliance and validate those actions 
undertaken have been effective  
 
Ongoing with continued monthly 
engagement with the Regulator.  There 
has been significant improvements 
across key performance areas and 
robust action plans are in place.  
External audit validation commenced 
December 2022 to support evidence to 
seek removal of the Notice. 

107



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

2.  Achieving Council transformation  

Risk Description 
The Council has entered a period of significant change and 
transformation, from back office through to front end delivery. 
 
This transformation will include but not be limited to: 
- harnessing better the use of technology and digital platforms 
- agile and flexible workforce that is managed by outcomes and 

delivery 
- physical changes ie buildings, assets usage etc as well as virtual 

interactions 
- working as part of a collaboration, partnership and joint venture 

involving other entities, both in the public sector, third sector and 
private sector 

 
All for the purpose of making the Council viable and sustainable as 
well as efficient, effective and economic. This risk should be 
considered as a driver of innovation and opportunity to achieve 
continuous improvement rather than a risk that needs to be managed 
in such a way that transformation envisaged is not achieved. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- New ways of working/service delivery models not adopted leading 

to increased inefficiency and ineffectiveness 
- Medium/long-term financial planning commitments not met 
- Failure to deliver Corporate Plan 2020-2023 objectives 
- Opportunities are not identified/ exploited 
- Staff disengagement 
 

Current Circumstances 
The emergence of Covid-19 has identified that the Council can 
effectively respond to a change in circumstances to ensure continuous 
operations. This rigor now needs to be applied to ensure this 
momentum continues and that positive experiences and benefits 
achieved as a result of recent changes are not lost. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. New ways of working programme arrangements in place 
B. Communications plan (internal) allowing for regular staff 

engagement/progress updates 
C. Staff/union engagement  
D. Project management/capability 
E. Partnership lead 
F. ICT development roadmap and strategy 
G. Organisational change programme in place 
H. Commercial lead/capabilities in house to identify 

opportunities  
I. Regular reporting on transformation programme to 

Corporate Management Team 
J. Financial/budgetary monitoring by Cabinet 
K. Performance management and key performance indicators in 

place 
L. Staff/officer wellbeing and support  
M. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
N. Development of Workforce Strategy and enabling an agile 

workforce 
O. Hybrid working model 
P. Staff appraisal process 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 2 

= 
Medium 4 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Review office accommodation and 
embed an agile approach to working by 
utilising cultural and technological 
changes 
 
Complete – The Council relocated to its 
new open-plan office on 9 January in a 
move that will improve business 
efficiency and working conditions and 
save ab estimated £300,000 a year in 
running costs. 
 

ii. Allocate resource to support Corporate 
Plan ambitions 
 
The 2023/24 budget setting process has 
followed the Corporate Plan aims.  
Resources will be allocated 
appropriately to ensure actions will be 
delivered.  The budget framework was 
approved by Council on 1 March 2023. 
 

iii. Review partnerships with other public 
sector partners to explore new and 
existing opportunities to deliver to 
residents and businesses 
 
Partnerships Register is being finalised 
subject to approval by Corporate 
Management Team in April 2023. 
 

iv. Review of ICT Strategy 
 
Complete – The ICT Strategy was 
approved by Finance, Economic 
Development and Corporate Services 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
27 September 2022.  

108



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

3.  Supporting communities  

Risk Description 
Creating safe, vibrant, and supportive communities is a core role of 
the Council. The Council holds a unique position with the ability to act 
as a catalyst for this purpose drawing together individuals, 
neighbourhoods, agencies, and businesses to transform communities.   
 
The Council does not want to position itself solely as the provider of 
services but be the mechanism that drives others to do so and 
provides steerage via the role of Members who have a unique insight 
into the needs of the District’s communities. This might be in a 
coordination, strategy, financing/ funding access role or a voice, as 
well as attracting investment, to name but just some of the enabling 
activities.   
 
This provides the Council the opportunity to think innovatively in 
conjunction with its communities to achieve a greater return through 
connectivity both physical, emotional, and technological. This risk 
should be considered as a driver of innovation and opportunity to 
achieve community improvement rather than a risk that needs to be 
managed in such a way that transformation envisaged is not achieved. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Failure to deliver the Corporate Plan 2020-2023 objectives 
- Contributes to community deterioration/lack of resilience 
- Reputation damage for the Council – negative media attention 
- Missed opportunities (to attract investment – generate 

income/improve quality of life for residents) 
- SKDC deliver services in a way that doesn’t meet needs of residents 
- Unfavourable perception/reality that the Council (and Members) 

are out of touch 
 

Current Circumstances  
Communities are likely to be negatively impacted due to Covid-19 
further still as the national and local economy shrinks. This will create 
additional pressures on local businesses and job security. 
 
 
 

A. Review and application of the Council’s Local Plan, including 
active monitoring of the implementation 

B. Clear and agreed transformation objectives 
C. SK Community focussed initiatives and funding streams 

targeted at supporting voluntary and community sectors  
D. InvestSK supporting economy growth  
E. Corporate Plan 2021-2023  
F. Community liaison officers/leads 
G. Customer Experience Strategy (how they access services etc) 
H. ICT Strategy 
I. Customer satisfaction feedback monitored to drive change 
J. Close working partnership with the Police 
K. New cultural strategy 
 
 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Develop strategy to invest in high 
quality leisure facilities across the 
district 
 
As a result of the building condition 
surveys, improvement works have 
commenced at the leisure centres 
across the District.  An update report 
was presented to Companies 
Committee on 1 December 2022. 
 

ii. Regeneration of Grantham Town 
Centre supported by the Future High 
Street fund  
 
A report was presented to Finance, 
Economic Development and Corporate 
Services Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 21 February 2023 
providing progress on public realm 
projects; Strategic site acquisition; 
Station Approach Masterplan; Upper 
Floor Grants Programme; Grantham 
Town Team, Programme Support and 
Recruitment; and a summary of 
engagement with the Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities 
(DLUHC). 
 

iii. Identify funding and other 
opportunities to support development 
of Bourne, Stamford and Market 
Deeping town centres  
 
At Council meeting on 26 January 2023, 
a grant of £3.9m was accepted from the 
UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) for 
financial years 2022/23, 2023/24 and 
2024/25, along with a £20k revenue 
contribution towards development 
costs of the UKSPF Investment Plan. 

109



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

The inaugural Member UKSPF Board 
met on 8 February 2023 to agree the 
Year One project list. 
 

iv. Implement key actions for future 
proofing waste service delivery in line 
with national waste collection changes 
introduced by Defra  
 
The Government response to the 
Consistency in Household Recycling 
Consultation is still awaited.  This will 
provide the framework to implement 
the Environment Act 2021.  The 
Government has responded to the 
consultation on Extended Producer 
Responsibility which will introduce 
payments to councils based on them 
being effective and efficient.   
 
The review of the waste collection 
rounds is almost complete.  Modelling 
of scenarios will then be undertaken 
which would seek to improve efficiency 
and better inform future procurement 
needs will provide options for further 
consideration to restructure rounds.  
 

v. Undertake a housing review to provide 
highest quality service to tenants 
 
The Council has adopted an 
improvement plan, based on the 
regulatory framework, to improve 
services to Council tenants.  A tenant-
wide survey has been undertaken – the 
“Big Listen” – to inform service 
improvements.  30-year Housing 
Revenue Account Business Plan is being 
developed over the next six months.  A 
restructure of the housing team has 
been completed and provides a fit for 
purpose structure moving forwards. 

110



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

vi. Continue to work in partnership with 
the police and the community in 
tackling crime by investing in the CCTV 
service  
 
Allocation has been made for the 
provision of free public Wi-Fi, having 
received agreement from the inaugural 
UKSPF Member Board, to upgrade the 
Council’s network of CCTV cameras 
from analogue to digital.  An Officer 
Delegated Decision has been prepared, 
along with contract award documents.  
These will be signed off once BT have 
submitted their final proposal.  A 
proposal to relocate the CCTV function 
to within the police headquarters is 
being considered. 
 

vii. Implement key actions arising from the 
Arts, Culture and Events Service Review 
 
A consultancy firm were appointed to 
prepare the revised Cultural Strategy. A 
significant amount of consultation has 
been ongoing and will continue, which 
will be used to feed into a draft Cultural 
Strategy for South Kesteven District 
Council.  The Cultural Strategy will pull 
together the Council’s vision and 
ambition, backed by a clear (and 
measurable) action plan. 
 

viii. Review and application of the Council’s 
Local Plan, including active monitoring 
of the implementation 
 
The Local Plan review rolls the Local 
Plan period forward by five years, from 
2036 –2041 to ensure the Local Plan 
covers a 20-year period (2021-2041). 
Work on the Local Plan Review began in 
April 2020 in line with the adopted 

111



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

Local Development Scheme (LDS) which 
sets out the timetable for delivery of 
the review.  In line with the published 
timetable a consultation on the 
Regulation 18 Draft Local Plan was due 
to be carried out in March 2023.  This 
has been delayed due to proposed 
amendments to the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) which has 
been published for consultation by the 
Department of Levelling Up, Housing 
and Communities.  The proposed 
changes to the NPPF have implications 
for the Local Plan review and a short 
adjustment to the Local Plan Review 
timetable will allow Officers to fully 
consider and incorporate any changes 
necessary and ensure that the next 
Local Plan is compliant with National 
Policy.  A revised LDS will be taken to 
Cabinet in May/June which will set out 
the new timetable. 

4.  Achieving future financial resilience 

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to properly execute and 
achieve its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 
 
The Council is developing a coherent and sustainable response to the 
forecasted reductions in funding over the medium term. The 
successful transformation of the Council will not only impact on the 
Council outlook and culture, ie a council that makes good evidenced 
based decisions and gets things done but will also have a significant 
impact on Council finances. 
 
The current budget incorporates budgeted savings and delivery of 
income streams which need to be managed and realised to ensure 
that balanced budgets can be achieved without any reliance on the 
use of reserves. 
 

A. Annual review of MTFP updating the three year horizon scan 
including reserve levels and future changes to funding   

B. Annual budget setting for revenue and capital including 
funding    

C. Utilisation of external financial support that provides support 
for funding modelling    

D. Regular budget monitoring reports and updates to senior 
officers and Members   

E. Treasury Management Strategy to ensure the Council are 
acting within the prudential indicators    

F. Development of savings plans and invest to save initiatives 
G. Maintain appropriate level of financial reserves as 

contingency arrangements to provide resilience over the 
medium term  

H. Development of capital plans in accordance with Capital 
Strategy with full financial appraisal and revenue implications 

I. Development of commercial opportunities and income 
generation proposals in order to build financial headroom  

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Continuation of the development of the 
strategic finance modelling under 
different scenarios 
 
Complete – Financial modelling was 
undertaken alongside the development 
of the MTFP.  Financial risk ratio 
analysis was presented to Members as 
part of developing the budget for 
2023/24. 
 

ii. Evaluation of capital scoring and 
appraisal methodology to ensure 
capital schemes support the outcomes 
of the Corporate Plan   
 
Complete – This robust methodology 
formed part of the capital strategy with 

112



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

This risk is also closely linked to the delivery of the Council 
transformation agenda and is reliant on ensuring that the Council has 
available suitable skills and experiences to support initiatives. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Reduction in cashflow position - breach banking/loan covenants 
- Reduced financial stability 
- Opportunities cannot be pursued – future reductions required 

(staff/non-statutory service provision) 
- Reputational damage resulting in negative media attention 
- Qualified External Audit Opinion/ Internal Audit Opinion 
- Increased scrutiny/intervention 
 

Current Circumstances   
The current financial climate is causing pressure on specific costs such 
as energy costs and inflationary driven services.  These rising costs are 
outside the direct control of the Council, but a range of responses are 
being developed to manage the Council’s exposure to the financial 
challenges that are being presented.    
 
The Housing Revenue Account Business Plan is being updated 
following the financial modelling arising from the 100% stock 
condition survey. A stock condition survey has been undertaken to 
allow a review of the business plan and development of a clear Asset 
Management Strategy. 

all capital bids presented on a 
corporate template and scored 
alongside the Corporate Plan.  
Developed and presented to Council on 
1 March 2023. 
 

iii. Review of Treasury Management 
Strategy – specifically borrowing 
proposals 
 
Complete – The 2023/24  Strategy has 
been updated in accordance with the 
Financial Management Code and was 
approved by Council on 1 March 2023.  
It will continue to be reviewed in 
response to the current financial 
climate. 
 

iv. Undertake asset management review 
and development of asset management 
plan 
 
Corporate assets are being  reviewed to 
balance the Council’s operational needs 
of asset retention, holding costs and 
the disposal opportunity.  To support 
this review an Asset Disposal Strategy 
was approved by Cabinet in December 
2021.  The Corporate Asset 
Management Strategy was approved by 
Cabinet on 22 September 2022. 
 

v. Undertake a review of Council assets 
that have a high dependency on utility 
consumption and introduce a range of 
energy efficiency initiatives to reduce 
consumption and associated costs (New 
action) 
 

vi. Undertake regular reviews of the MTFP 
in response to the changes in 
operational costs (New action) 
 

113



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

5.  Creating the right culture, capacity and capability  

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to successfully achieve the 
level of change expected and required by Council leaders and 
stakeholders. In creating the change will come a new culture and 
outlook that is described as “agile” and “outcome focussed” ie we do 
what we say we will. 
 
Key to the above will be ensuring that: 
- The Council keeps under close watch recruitment, talent 

development and retention, as well as use of external specialists 
where necessary 

- Partnership and collaborative working is optimised 
- An appropriate operating environment and culture is created that 

will enable the necessary changes to occur. This may require a 
review of constitutional policies and procedures and a re-
assessment of risk appetite at all levels in the Council, specifically 
members 

- Member/officer mind sets are aligned regards the change initiatives 
enabling the appropriate cultural change 

 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Reduced staff motivation/morale/staff burn out resulting in high 

sickness/absences 
- Poor performance 
- High recruitment and agency costs 
- Lack of innovation 
- Skill gaps 
- Deterioration of service quality through loss of experienced staff 
- Reputation damage via social media 
 

Current Circumstances   
Restructuring activity undertaken during 2022/23 has had a positive 
impact on creating a more optimal structure that is better aligned to 
deliver the Council’s goals.  
 
Whilst there are pockets of concerns relating to morale, performance, 
motivation etc, early indications from the 2023 Engagement Survey 
(just undertaken) indicate that overall, engagement has significantly 
improved this year.  
 
 

A. The staff requisition process (assessment of needs and 
business case re posts)   

B. Culture change workshops/action plan to enhance mindsets, 
encourage collaboration and engender a culture that enables 
change and innovation   

C. Mapping of talent to corporate strategy as part of resource 
determination 

D. Learning and development programme providing training, 
tools and techniques to develop the necessary skills    

E. Check-ins (PDRs) 
F. People and Organisational Development Strategy revised and 

issued   
G. Investigation and identification of further collaborations that 

will support building capacity and capability (and resilience) 
including both public and corporate business 

H. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
 
 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Review People and Organisational 
Development Strategy to include a pay 
review and agile working styles  
 
New Ways of Working protocol has 
been developed, signed off and 
cascaded with flexible guidance on agile 
working that meets business, team, and 
individual’s needs.  A working group 
developed direction of four strands of 
work in the pay review, each of which 
have been progressed including the 
introduction of career grades and 
revised job evaluation process.   
 

ii. Undertake an assessment of Council 
corporate resilience with a view to 
creating a programme of learning and 
development that will strengthen 
individual coping strategies and 
performance 
 
Annual appraisals were completed 
across the Council in 2022/23.  The 
cycle will start again in March 2023. 
 

iii. Undertake annual review of resources 
across the Council 
 
Complete – A review was undertaken 
with Phase 2 of the restructure being 
completed. 
 

iv. Develop action plan arising from 
employee survey 
 
Action plan has been created and 
implemented with input from the 
People Panel and the wider Council.  
2023 Survey has been conducted and 
responsive action plan will be created. 

114



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

 v. Undertake learning and development 
programmes including fostering 
leadership skills 
 
Learning and development plan for 
2022/23 has been deployed.  Institute 
of Leadership & Management training 
is taking place during February and 
March 2023. 
 

vi. Embed positive member/officer 
relationship 
 
Political Awareness training session 
held in Quarter 3 and these will be 
ongoing.  Member/Officer Protocol in 
place as part of the Constitution. 
Development sessions facilitated by the 
LGA held with the Corporate 
Management Team, Cabinet, the 
Administration and the Opposition 
Group regarding roles and 
responsibilities. 

6.  Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy, national political change, and changes to the external environment 

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council being unable to identify, interpret and 
act on/respond to political, policy change and changes to the external 
environment, and therefore best position itself to maximise on 
opportunities that this may present or to mitigate risks that may 
emerge as a result and impact on existing plans and strategies. 
 
The UK is still transitioning through Brexit of which there is still large 
scale uncertainty at a macro level and how this may translate at a 
local level both economically and socially, for communities, business, 
and the Council itself. Similar is the outcomes of the recent election 
with the Government embarking on its future path which is 
intrinsically linked with Brexit. In addition, there are a number of 
changes in other public sector bodies which will or could impact on 
the Council/ Communities. The Council needs to be well positioned to 
have early sight of these and potential implications. 
 

A. Continuous monitoring of political landscape to allow for 
early indicators of policy change  

B. Prudent financial and strategy assumptions to allow for agile 
responses (see controls under Risk 4 re MTFP) 

C. Corporate Plan 2020-2023 reviewed and updated where 
appropriate as changes identified that could impact on the 
Council and its plans ie Covid-19 

D. Section 151 Officer role providing advice to the Council on 
current/future financial challenges 

E. Monitoring Officer role providing advice to the Council on 
current/future legal challenges 

F. Reports to committee include explicit assessment of 
implications and therefore should identify/reflect current and 
future challenges 

G. Executive to undertake horizon scanning look out/forwards 
and identify possible challenges ahead 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Develop stakeholder map/engagement 
plan to identify key 
individuals/organisations 
 

ii. Establish, maintain, and monitor a list 
of “emerging risks” and undertake 
scenario planning 
 

iii. CMT to attend professional 
events/forums and provide feedback  
 
The Policy Officer provides updates on 
policy changes at a national level and 
identifies potential issues at a local 
level that may impact on the Council.  A 
new policy control framework register 
has been implemented for the Council.  

115



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
- Potential breach of regulation/legislation 
- Threat to future financial viability 
- Trigger regulator inspections/scrutiny 
- Missed opportunities/failure to exploit opportunities that may arise 
- Council becomes disconnected from residents/local businesses 
- Management has to spend increased resources on ‘firefighting’ 
- Negative media and press 
 

Current Circumstances 
There are two dimensions that should be recognised at this point:  
  
- The potential for a further economic financial crisis, including likely 

future austerity measures  
- The cost of living crisis which has been caused by unprecedented 

inflationary increases primarily related to the cost of utilities 

H. Membership of Local Government Association etc providing 
information/insights to the Council 

I. Members roles and responsibilities including involvement in 
local networks, County Council, other agencies, and national 
forums, enabling insight to be gained and shared with the 
Council  

J. Staff membership of professional bodies enabling own 
development and also providing for insights through 
membership of challenges that may present themselves to 
the Council 

K. Officer/member forums and networks including County 
Council, other Lincolnshire Councils, and wider agencies for 
purpose of collaboratively tackling issues etc 
 

Work has commenced on the 
Corporate Plan refresh with swot 
analysis, operating environments, 
economic and political outlooks 
identified.  State of District report being 
developed. 
 

iv. Establish cost of living response group  
The Group is focusing on assessing the 
impact on the vulnerable parts of the 
community to ensure that they receive 
the right level of support and 
assistance.  In addition, those services 
involved ie Benefits, Housing and 
Revenues are coordinating support and 
advice to those requiring it.  An action 
plan has been developed to support the 
community including residents and 
businesses.  To help South Kesteven 
residents deal with the cost of living a 
Wellbeing Fair was held on 25 
February. 

7.  Ensuring robust security measures to protect the Council’s data and assets from external threats 

Risk Description 
This risk relates to the Council’s ability to defend itself against the 
constantly evolving threat from cyber based attack. The Council, in 
common with other public bodies, should be regarded as a high 
profile target given the impact and publicity a successful attack can 
have. 
 
The Council, through the measures in place, repels almost on a daily 
basis “attack vectors” launched by adversaries from across the globe. 
The risk to the Council of not maintaining these effective controls and 
it’s continuing to invest in these countermeasures is very high. 
 
Officer education and vigilance in identifying suspicious contacts is as 
important as the security systems that are in place. 
 

Effects of Risk Realisation 
The consequences of a successful attack can have a number of 
consequences, not just operational but also reputational. The impact 

A. Physical enterprise level firewalls are in place on the Council’s 
network.  A default deny-all principle is adopted for the 
firewall rule base with a limited number of permitted 
connections to the network.  

B. Email is screened in the cloud before being delivered to end 
users. Outlook also checks on the device  

C. Antivirus software – Anti-virus installed on all network 
servers and computers. Definitions are updated daily and on 
access file scanning enabled on all laptop and daily full scans 
on servers.  Any files identified as infected or suspicious are 
blocked and notification sent to IT staff 

D. Encryption – Encryption is used on all laptops issued. Any 
external devices such as USB drives must also be encrypted 
for use. This protects against online and physical theft 

E. Endpoint devices – Non approved devices cannot be used 
and are blocked  

F. Patches are set to be automatically downloaded and installed 
on all devices by policy 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
High 8 

 
 
 
 

 

i. Carry out annual penetration test  
 
Annual penetration test will be 
undertaken by May 2023. 
 

ii. Annual refresher training on cyber risks 
for all staff  
 
Completion of annual training will be 
monitored to ensure that it is 
undertaken. 
 

iii. Scheduled review of policies 
 
Cyber Action Policy was approved in 
2022.  Acceptable Use of IT Policy is 
currently being reviewed. 
 

116



Risk Title, Risk Description, Effects of Risk Realisation 
and Current Circumstances 

Risk Controls 
Residual 

Risk Score 
Actions  Being Undertaken  
and Progress Update 

is not just an internal one, but it also has consequences for our 
customers if we cannot provide our essential services. 
 

Current Circumstances   
IT maintain a variety of security systems to ensure the continued 
protection of Council systems and data. 
 
Policies and procedures are in place to help ensure all necessary 
measures are taken by IT officers and Council staff to detect and 
prevent any malicious access attempts. 
 
Specialist cyber training has been delivered to relevant IT staff as well 
as cyber awareness training authority wide. 
 
A 2022 audit identified areas of potential weakness and a Cyber 
Treatment Plan was created.  This is being actioned with a deadline of 
April 2023 for all actions to be completed.  90% of the actions have 
been implemented. 
 
East Midlands Cyber Security Network (EMGWARP) has reviewed the 
Council’s email security and a rating of 94% was awarded. 

G. Penetration testing is carried out by an external supplier to 
audit/test the effectiveness of the measures in place. A 
report is provided of any recommended actions.  Active 
monitoring of external interfaces is in place and unusual 
activity is reported to IT officers 

H. A programme of familiarisation training is in place which 
simulates Malware attacks and provides training and support 
to re-enforce the messages 

I. Awareness training for officers and Members on the threats 
of cyber attacks is provided annually 

J. Continued reviewing and tightening of existing IT Security 
Policy to ensure measures adapt to the changing threat, 
including awareness, familiarisation and training 

K. Acceptable use of IT policy to ensure staff are using 
equipment safely and appropriately 

L. Relationships with other agencies, such as EMGWARP and 
National Security Council, to improve awareness of threats by 
alerts, bulletins and regular meetings 

iv. Remove any end-of-life hardware and 
software from the domain  
 
Work continues to remove end of life 
devices and applications. Mitigation 
such as third party software tools and 
read only access are being added where 
necessary. 
 

v. Completion of the actions identified in 
the Cyber Treatment Plan 
 
18 of the 20 High risk recommendations 
complete (2 in progress) 
8 of the 9 Medium risk 
recommendations complete (1 in 
progress) 
3 Low risk recommendations complete 
 

 

117



 

118



 
 

       

Governance and 
Audit Committee 
 
 

15 March 2023 
 
Report of Councillor Nick Robins 
Cabinet Member for Planning and 
Planning Policy  
 

 

 

Planning Service Review – Progress Report 

(March 2023) 
 

Report Author 

Emma Whittaker, Assistant Director of Planning 

  Emma.whittaker@southkeseven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is for Governance and Audit Committee to consider the progress 

made against the Planning Review Action Plan and to seek agreement to receive a further 

progress report in 12 months in relation to the remaining actions.   

 

Recommendations 

 

It is recommended Governance and Audit Committee: 

1. Agrees to receive a progress update on the remaining items on the Action 
Plan in 12 months. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

119

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

• Growth and our economy 

• Housing that meets the needs of all residents 

• Healthy and strong communities 

• Clean and sustainable environment 

• High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the report.  Should any 

additional costs be required, this will be assessed and considered at the appropriate 

time in line with the service plan.  

 

Completed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 This external review and the resulting action plan has resulted in improvements to 

the Council’s Planning Service, which should be welcomed. There are no significant 

legal or governance implications arising from this report. 

Completed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Monitoring 

Officer  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  A key theme of South Kesteven District Council’s Corporate Plan (2020-2023) is to 

deliver a culture of high performance. The role and purpose of the planning service 

is to protect the built and natural environment while enabling development to meet 

the changing needs and aspirations of the people of South Kesteven. A key action 

of the Corporate Plan was to undertake a planning review to improve performance 

and support local sustainable, high-quality growth. 

 

120



2.2 Following engagement with councillors and officers through workshops and focus 

groups, in September 2020 the results of an independently commissioned review 

of the planning service was published. An action plan was subsequently developed, 

for which Governance and Audit Committee last received an update just over a year 

ago.   

 

2.4 Since this Committee was last updated in January 2022, several critical posts have 

been filled and a review of the overall structure was completed in November 2022. 

The subsequent restructure, within the same budget envelope, has allowed the 

creation of new posts which should be filled in Spring 2023.  New posts include: 

 

• Development Management and Enforcement Manager 

• Planning Policy Manager 

• Infrastructure Delivery Officer 

• Senior Planning Policy Officer 

• Fixed-Term temporary Planning Policy Assistant Officer 

• Additional Planning Support Officer 

• Assistant Conservation Officer (increased from part-time to full-time) 

 

2.5  The planning restructure and consequent recruitment process is critical to the 

completion of the Action Plan. Reviews of the Council’s pre-application service, 

including Design Pad, are ongoing and will be completed once the team is fully 

resourced.  The additional resource created in the Planning Support team, along 

with some improvements to the Information Technology (IT) system will allow the 

validation of planning applications to be moved from planning officers to the 

support team.  This will free up Officer time to concentrate on the determination of 

planning applications.   

 

2.6  The Council has recently appointed a new Senior Enforcement Planning Officer 

following the departure of the previous officer in August 2022.  As a result of this 

appointment, the enforcement team will be able to focus on a review of the 

Enforcement Policy as well as other processes and practices.  Quarterly updates 

on performance to the Planning Committee will also be able to be resumed. 

 

2.7 The new Infrastructure Delivery Officer will, with the senior Development 

Management team, review the current processes associated with the collection 

and monitoring of section 106 agreements.  Work will also include creating a fee 

structure for monitoring agreements which will assist in funding this post.  The 

creation of this post will allow better engagement with our stakeholders including 

the Parish and Town Council’s to ensure better opportunities for local infrastructure 

provision to meet the needs of development.  

 

2.8 An update to the Action Plan is provided at Appendix A. For ease of reading there 

are two tables, as follows:  

 

121



a) The first table provides an overview of the action, progress to date and 

anticipated completion date of the action (split into actions to be undertaken by 

Officers (i.e. improvements to the Planning service) and those which included 

Member engagement (i.e. engagement with the Planning Committee)).   

b) The second table highlights completed actions. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Significant amendments to the Council’s Constitution have been undertaken and 

were adopted at Full Council on July 2022 (see Background Papers). This 

included changes to the Scheme of Delegation which has enabled the Planning 

Committee to focus on the most significant and controversial applications.    

 

3.2 Alongside the changes to the Constitution, a new Planning Local Guide of Good 

Practice was approved (see Background Papers). This document provides 

guidance for Councillors and Officers when dealing with Planning Matters and 

covers procedure for several key areas including (yet not limited to) the following: 

  

• The role of the Planning Committee 

• Lobbying 

• Public Speaking  

• Decision Making process 

• Decisions contrary to officer recommendation and subsequent appeals 

• Site visits 

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 The Planning Review (undertaken in 2020) and subsequent action plan were a 

result of extensive consultation.  Therefore, the ‘do nothing’ option was discounted 

as it was considered appropriate to provide Members with an update on progress. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Service reviews allow the Council to reflect on how a service is performing and 

specifically what is going well and what areas could be improved.  Once a review 

has been carried out it is important any action plan created is monitored and 

progress against it reported.  By reporting progress, the Governance and Audit 

Committee will have the assurance the areas for development highlighted by the 

Planning Service Review are being prioritised and addressed, with improvements 

embedded. The approach outlined, provides the Audit and Governance Committee 

with the opportunity to maintain ongoing oversight and refinement of the action plan. 

 

 

 

 

122



6. Consultation 
 

6.1 Since the action plan was last reported to this committee, a significant amount of 

consultation with the Planning and Constitution Committees has taken place as part 

of the review of the Planning Scheme of Delegation and creation of the Planning 

Local Guide of Good Practice.  Feedback from this process has been extremely 

positive and resulted in several amendments to the documents before they were 

presented in their final forms.   

 

6.2 The restructure of the planning team underwent consultation with the unions and 

staff.  As detailed above, the restructure has resulted in several new posts being 

created which will help deliver the remaining actions in the Action Plan. The 

consultation was received positively, and some changes were made to the structure 

as a result of the engagement process.    

 

7. Background Papers 
 

7.1 Amendments to the Council’s Constitution – Report to Council, Published 25 July 

2022, available online via:  

 http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35269/Covering%20Report.p

df 

 

7.2 Guidance for Members and Officers Dealing with Planning Matters – A Local Code 

of Good Practice, Published and available online via:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32677/Appendix%20B%20

Guidance%20For%20Members%20and%20Officers%20Dealing%20with%20Plan

ning%20Matters%2029th%20October.pdf 

 

7.3 Planning Service Review – Progress Report, Report to Governance and Audit, 

published 26 January 2022, available online at: 

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32273/Planning%20Service

%20Review%20-%20Progress%20Report.pdf 

 

7.4 South Kesteven District Council Planning Service Review, published September 

2020, available online at:  

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30480/Annex%201%20-

%20South%20Kesteven%20Planning%20Review.pdf 

 

8. Appendices 
 

8.1 Appendix A – Planning Review Action Plan [Updated March 2023] 

 

 

 

 

 

123

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35269/Covering%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s35269/Covering%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32677/Appendix%20B%20Guidance%20For%20Members%20and%20Officers%20Dealing%20with%20Planning%20Matters%2029th%20October.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32677/Appendix%20B%20Guidance%20For%20Members%20and%20Officers%20Dealing%20with%20Planning%20Matters%2029th%20October.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32677/Appendix%20B%20Guidance%20For%20Members%20and%20Officers%20Dealing%20with%20Planning%20Matters%2029th%20October.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32273/Planning%20Service%20Review%20-%20Progress%20Report.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s32273/Planning%20Service%20Review%20-%20Progress%20Report.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30480/Annex%201%20-%20South%20Kesteven%20Planning%20Review.pdf
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s30480/Annex%201%20-%20South%20Kesteven%20Planning%20Review.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

PLANNING REVIEW ACTION PLAN 
 
DATE:  March 2023 
 
PURPOSE OF PAPER: 
 
To provide Governance and Audit Committee with an overview of the development of and progress of the improvement plan arising 
from the externally commissioned review for the Planning Service. 
 
The table below provides an overview of the action, progress to date and anticipated completion date of the action. This has been 
split into actions to be undertaken by Officers (i.e. improvements to the Planning service) and those which included Member 
engagement (i.e. engagement with the Planning Committee).  For ease of reading, completed actions have also been moved to a 
separate table (Table 2). 
 
TABLE 1 - OVERVIEW OF PROGRESS 
 

Action 
No. 

Action Progress Expected 
Completion Date  

Officer Programme – Operation of Planning Service 

13. More training for officers on best practices when 
presenting to the planning committee. 

The Director for Growth and Culture and Assistant 
Director of Planning to oversee the delivery of this 
action. The sessions to be delivered with support of 
Chair and Vice Chair of planning committee. 

In progress with 
ongoing training; all 
officers are 
encouraged to 
present their own 
cases to Committee 
as part of their 
development. 

18. The Enforcement policy should be reviewed and 
appropriately resourced. 

Additional Planning Enforcement budget approved for 
2021/22 and recruitment activity was undertaken.  New 
Senior Enforcement Officer has been appointed 
(January 2023) after a period with the post being vacant. 
 
 

Resourcing – 
Complete. 
 
 
Reporting of 
performance of the 
Enforcement team to 
resume (Planning 
Committee) 
Enforcement Policy to 
be reviewed Spring 
2023 

25.  Fully exploit the opportunity of technology investment. Audit of functionality across systems complete. 
Implementation plan in development working with the 
South Kesteven ICT service to provide training and 
appropriate solutions across the service. 

Ongoing - Use of 
Uniform/IDOX is 
being expanded (e.g. 
use of Tree 
Preservation Order 
module and Public 
Access) 

26. Revise the validation process to be a back of house 
function. 

Engagement and workshop conducted with individual 
teams and jointly. A resource analysis has been 
completed to understand the required resource to 
absorb validation requirements.  
 

Transfer of activity to commence in July 2021. 

The Planning 
restructure has 
resulted in additional 
resourcing in the 
planning support 
team – validation 
function to move 
across from Spring 
2023. 

27. Ensure clarity within the Council on who holds 
responsibility for the delivery of the IT strategy, updates, 
and training of staff. 

Included within Item 25 once current upgrades have 
been implemented. 

Spring / Summer 
2022 Completion with 
external supplier. 

Officer and Member Programme – Engagement with Planning Committee and Other Processes 

15. Create a clearly defined pre-application process which 
distinguishes between strategic and minor applications, 
and between corporate discussions in relation to growth 
and investment versus technical input from the planning 
service. 

Further work will be undertaken in 2022 to review the 
pre-application advice service and this will include 
further protocols to support member engagement. 

Commencement: 
January 2022 

16. The Council should replace the existing ‘Design Pad’ with 
full briefings for all members of the Committee on major 
applications. 

Design pad has been retained with amendments to 
ensure smooth running of the service and to reduce the 
risk of probity. 
 
The delivery of this service will be reviewed as part of 
the overall pre-application process (item 15). 

Commencement: 
January 2022 

29. Establish clear pathways for engagement with the Council 
at strategic and operational levels in respect of planning 

Following an external review a suggested pathway has 
been developed with clear roles in engaging with 

Partially completed 
through the adopted 

125



 
  

consents and development proposals. For example: 
Developers to meet with Leader and Chief Executive or 
Director only. No members of the planning committee 
should be meeting with developers. 

developers (i.e. who should/should not communicate 
with developers at different stages). 
 
Clear protocols have been established with significant 
engagement with members ensuring this is clarified. The 
next items of work will be to examine the pre-application 
advice service to ensure we are evolving with the 
demands of the service. This is to be delivered in line 
with items (15 and 16). 
 

 

protocols.  Linked 
with items 15 and 16 
in relation to Member 
engagement.   

126



TABLE 2: COMPLETED ACTIONS 
 

Action 
No. 

Action Completed Expected 
Completion Date  

Officer Programme – Operation of Planning Service 

11. Develop a tailored and targeted member training 
programme which addresses specific concerns and in 
particular addresses issues raised around application of 
planning policy in decision making, the framework and 
appropriate use of conditions, and the key stages in 
determination of a larger planning application. 

1. Audit of the training which has taken place.  
2. Review training for gaps and examine training 

process for committee members. 
3. Future training needs identified and a draft schedule 

developed to support ongoing development of the 
planning service. 

 

Training schedule in place until February 2022.  

Complete 

12. A series of workshops in relation to Local Plan 
“ownership” and future revisions. This is likely to be an 
ongoing piece of engagement with elected members. 

Programme of training to be constructed and shared as 
per Recommendation 11.  
 

Early delivery includes Sessions on 27th January and 
24th February on Local Plan housing/environmental 
policies and the draft Design SPD. 
 

Future sessions to be incorporate as part of the ongoing 
training programme. 

Complete – February 
2021 (with ongoing 
action) 

13. More training for officers on best practices when 
presenting to the planning committee. 

The newly appointed Director for Growth and Culture to 
oversee the delivery of this action. The sessions to be 
delivered with support of Chair and Vice Chair of 
planning committee. 

Completed - with 
ongoing training; all 
officers are 
encouraged to 
present their own 
cases to Committee 
as part of their 
development. 

17. Quarterly reporting of Section 106 income and 
expenditure, and enforcement matters should be 
scrutinised by the monitoring officer and reported to 
committee. 

Publication of the Infrastructure Funding Statement and 
Associated documents to MHCLG. Regular quarterly 
briefings for Planning Committee in place. 

Complete - December 
2020 (with ongoing 
action) 

21. Implement a system of regular Directorate Team 
meetings between the Director and the Heads of Service 
to provide leadership, direction and focus to the service. 

Regular management meetings scheduled with 
Assistant Director of Planning. Weekly Team Leaders 
meetings and 1-2-1s in place.  

Complete 
Regular 1-2-1 
meetings have been 
booked and made 
available for 
members of the team. 
 
Team Leader 
Meetings across 
Planning, Planning 
Policy and Support 
Team held on a 
weekly basis. 
 
Monthly Planning 
Department team 
meeting in place. 

22. Linked to resolving issues of structure and permanence 
within the officer core, establish a culture of collaborative 
and strong leadership including regular opportunities for 
engagement between officers, Heads of Service and 
Directors. 

Create channels for junior staff to receive regular 
communications and seek support from Leadership. 
Ensure engagements from 1-2-1’s are meaningful and 
support the development of officers. 

Complete and 
continues as per 
yearly appraisal. 

23. Establish a system of performance indicators which are 
easily understood by members and officers and hold 
regular feedback sessions for teams and individuals. 

Service Plan developed and approved in April 2021. 
Delivery against objectives and implementation to 
continue. 
 
Continuous review of the KPIs to ensure an accurate 
reflection of the Corporate Plan Objectives and to deliver 
improvements to service performance. 

Complete 

24. Develop in-house experience within the planning team by 
aligning Special Projects, the Local Plan, and 
Development Management teams under a single head of 
planning service and exercise greater restraint over the 
use of external consultants. 

Review Structure aligned to Assistant Director role and 
implemented (May-June 2021). Item achieved within 
current structures. Senior Planning Officer's started in 
May 2021 / Enforcement Officer August / recruitment in 
place for Principle Conservation officer and Assistant 
Director of Planning appointed to join in September 
2021. 
 
 

Complete 

28. The conditions for permanence within the staffing 
structure and review recruitment proposition to ensure the 
Council can attract and retain high quality personnel. This 

Review Structure aligned to Assistant Director of 
Planning role and further programmed work to take 
place. 

Complete November 
2022 with a 

127



will enable clear leadership, structure, and lines of 
engagement between officers. 

restructure of the 
service 

5. Senior staff advice including legal advice, should routinely 
be available to committee members at the committee 

This has been agreed and implemented. Complete 

Officer and Member Programme – Engagement with Planning Committee and Other Processes 

1. Consider whether the present Committee arrangements 
are fit for purpose 

The committee arrangements are being considered as 
part of a wider review of protocols and processes, which 
are referenced in the actions outlined below. 

 
Following significant 
engagement with 
Councillors including 
the Planning 
Committee new 
protocols and 
constitutional 
arrangements have 
been in place since 
July 2022 

2. Clarify the protocols for representations to the Planning 
Committee, ensuring consistency and equity in those for 
and against an application. Adhere strictly to the time 
limits. 

Current speaking arrangements and protocols for 
representations are appropriately clear and have been 
clarified in Informal Committee meetings. 
 

The Chair and Vice Chair of the Planning Committee are 
responsible for ensuring that these protocols are 
adhered to. 
 
 
 

Completed July 2002 
(as no. 1 above) 

3. Ensure the new protocols are published and readily 
understood by all participants at each planning committee 
and that prospective speakers are reminded of them 
before the meeting. 

Existing protocols and amendments have been 
presented in consecutive committees. 
 
Two informal consultations we’re undertaken with 
Planning Committee with the process being overseen by 
the Chair of Planning and the Cabinet Member for 
Planning & Planning Policy. 
 
Revisions to the protocols will now be considered by 
relevant committees prior to formal adoption (i.e. 
Constitution Committee and Full Council). 

Completed July 2022 
with training provided 
to Councillors (as no. 
1 above) 

6. The Council changes its procedures to ensure 
applications are only refused at Committee where 
members have voted to do so based on clear and cogent 
planning grounds.  

A Local Code of Good Practice has been provided which 
outlines guidance to members throughout the process of 
determination. This will aid committee members and add 
to further learning from member training sessions. 

Complete with 
ongoing training plan 
in place. 

7. Agree a revised Scheme of Delegation collaboratively 
with elected members for adoption by the Council and 
ensure any deviation can only be agreed on an 
exceptional basis by the Chief Executive, in consultation 
with the Leader of the Council. 

Following consultation with the Planning Committee – a 
proposed scheme of delegation will be taken forward. 
 
This was voted and agreed at the 26 November 2021 
Informal Planning Committee.   

Completed (July 2022 
as no. 1 above) 

8. Agree a revised Call-In protocol which permits members 
to call-in applications within their wards, on submission of 
a request containing a sound planning reason. This 
should be adjudicated by a senior manager, ideally the 
Service Director.  

Following consultation with the Planning Committee – 
the call-in procedure was examined in detail. Call-ins will 
now be adjudicated by the Chair and Vice-Chair of 
Planning in Consultation with the Assistant Director of 
Planning. 
 
This was voted and agreed at the 26 November 2021 
Informal Planning Committee. 

 
Completed (July 2022 
as no. 1 above) 

9. The creation of a criteria for when an application justifies 
a site visit will help provide greater clarity and confidence 
in the planning system. 

Following consultation with the Planning Committee – a 
revised site visit process will be taken forward. 
 
Members are able to undertake site visits individually. 
Risks associated with Health and Safety, Lone-Working 
and Probity will be the responsibility of the elected 
member. 
 
A regular schedule of site visits will be set and 
scheduled for Planning Committee members to attend. 
 
Guidance can be read in the Local Code of Good 
practice. 

 
Completed (July 2022 
as no. 1 above) 

10. Further, a Code of Conduct for members when attending 
site visits will help protect the council and members from 
any vexatious or otherwise pre-determination and other 
legal challenges. 

Following consultation with the Planning Committee – a 
revised site visit process will be taken forward. 
 
Members are able to undertake site visits individually. 
Risks associated with Health and Safety, Lone-Working 
and Probity will be the responsibility of the elected 
member. 

 
Completed (July 2022 
as no. 1 above) 

128



 
 
 

 
A regular schedule of site visits will be set and 
scheduled for Planning Committee members to attend. 
 
Guidance can be read in the Local Code of Good 
practice.). 

14. The Council should revise the expectations of elected 
members who serve on the Planning Committee to 
ensure the highest standards of transparency and 
openness in relation to other tiers of Government in the 
District. 

This was examined within both Informal Planning 
Committees and a Local Code of Good Practice has 
been provided to support the Members who serve upon 
the committee. 
 
Significant chapters to aid this section include: 

- Fettering discretion in the planning process 
- Lobbying 
- Decision Making 
- Site Visits 

 
Completed (July 2022 
as no. 1 above) 

19. Use the opportunity of a revised planning and 
development structure to revisit member and officer 
relationships through the lifecycle of an application to 
ensure value added and appropriate interaction. This 
could be achieved through internal and external training 
and support - and must be undertaken collaboratively. 

The new Assistant Director of Planning in engaging with 
the service has reclarified the roles of Members and 
Officers. This will be supplemented by the Member 
training programme. 
 
This has been identified in the Local Code of Good 
Practice where Member and Officer roles are outlined. 
The guide goes further to identify the ‘do’ and ‘do not’ 
items to assist member interaction throughout the 
lifecycle of an application. 

Completed with 
scheduled member 
training programme 
as an ongoing item. 

20 Outlines the clear roles and responsibilities of elected 
members and officers in the determination of planning 
applications.  

To be communicated and clarified as part of any process 
involving revisions to delegations and processes.   
 

Further training will also be available to support 
Members and Officers. 
 
The Local Code of Good Practice outlines Member and 
Officer roles across various scenarios. The guide goes 
further to identify in context, where members should be 
cautious and approach situations with clarity of various 
risks. 

 
Completed Local 
protocols adopted 
July 2022 

4. Specific training for Chair and Vice-Chair on running 
procedures and Chairing of meetings. 

To be examined and provided in consultation with the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Planning 
Committee alongside the Director of Growth and Culture 
and newly appointed Assistant Director for Planning. 

Completed 6th 
October 2021 – 
Chairing Skills for 
Councillors 

129



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2022-23 
 

Committee Membership: 7 
 

Chairman: Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

 

 15 March 2023  

Internal Audit Progress Report Internal Audit to present  Progress Report To review and note the contents of 
the report. 

Planning Service Review 
Progress Report 

The progression made following an external review of the 
Planning Service commissioned by South Kesteven District 
Council 

To note the external review and 
planned member engagement. 

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to the Committee twice a 
year as part of the monitoring and review of the risk management 
arrangements. 

 

To review and consider approving 
the Strategic Risk Register. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies  
 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the Statement of 
Accounts to ensure that the policies are up to date and in line with 
the CIPFA Code of Practice. 

 

To consider approving the 
Statement of Accounting Policies. 

Items to be allocated as and when required 

Financial Regulations 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Code of Conduct 

Contract Procedure Rules 

Risk Management Framework 

131

A
genda Item

 9



Item Current Issues/Status Outcome Sought 

Committee Members Meeting with Auditors 

Counter Fraud Framework 

 

 

 

 

132


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 January 2023
	4 Updates from previous meeting
	5 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Internal Audit - Programme Management Report
	Internal Audit - Voids Report
	Internal Audit - Health & Safety Report

	6 2022/2023 Accounting Policies and publication date of the Statement of Accounts
	Appendix A - 2022/23 Accounting Policies

	7 Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix A - Draft Strategic Risk Register

	8 Planning Service Review - Progress Report March 2023
	Appendix A - Planning Service Action Plan

	9 Work Programme

